
J. D. FREDERICKS.

IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA.

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF LOS fu~GELES.

Dept. No. 11. Bon. Geo. H. Hutton, jUdge.

---0---

REPORTERS' TRANSCRIPT.

---0---

VOL. '17

Re-C.

No. 7373.

Re-D.Cross.Direct.

I N D E X.

The People of the State of California, )
)

Plaintiff, )
)

vs. )
)

Clarence Darrow, )
)

Defendant. )

Clar eDce Darrow 6380
i~
I

I

I
i
!



1 August 19t, 1912. 2 o'clock P.J'{.

6280

2 Defendant in court with counsel.

3

4 CLARIil~CE DARROW ON TBE STAnD FOR FURTHER

5 CROSS-~!I}~_TION

6 THE COURT: Proceed, if you are ready, gentlemen.

7 lTR FOBD: Ur Darrow, the order dravling the jurors who \"vere

8 to appear in court on Tuesday mOlning, was made on Sat-

9 urday, November 25th; is that your recoIl Ection? A That

10 is my recoll·ection.

11 Q Do you not recall that the cou rt -- do you vii sh to see

12 the record? A No; go ahead.

13 Q At the time the order vas made also made the follow­

14 ing order, app earing on pag e 293.

15 }IR ROGERS: Wait a moment. That is not the 'lay to intro­

16 duce the record.

17 lJR FORD: The record has already been introduced, Mr

18 ROgers. Recall that the court also made the fo llovling

19 order: (Reading:) lilt was further ordered tlRt the per­

20 sons whose names were drm"m as aforesaid, e.ppear and C'~t­

21 tend at this court in Department 9 thereof on Tuesday,

22 the 28th day of NoVEmber, 1911, e.t 9 o'clock of the fore-

23 noon of said da.y. It

24 probably true.

A I don't recall it, bUt it is

26 anybody comes into court a.t 9 o'clock, even if th e order

25 Q You were not there at 9 o'clock. A Scarc ely
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is made.

Q You were not there at 9 o'clock that morning? A I

don't think I was there that early; probaboy about 10 min­

utes IR st.

Q About 10 minutes past? A Now) probably. I wouldn't

say ernc tjy) Mr Ford.

Q You wanted to be th ere a t the d ra\ving, end got there

as quickly as you could?

MR ROGERS: That is not the drawing; that is the return.

MR FORD: Counsel is correct. You wanted to be there duri~

the time that the jurors were being qualified by the court,

as quicldy as you could? A 1[1' Ford, no lav,ryer, especially

if he has associates, ever thinks he has got tb be there

imm edia t ely, 'but I don' t mow t hat any such thing ,vas in my

mind. lEy busin ass alvays was to be present at such times.

Q It va.s your general practice to be present, however,

p ersonall~r, whenever the jurors were being cp.alifi ed by

the court? A Mygeneral practice \vas to be there all the

time, v.d1atever was going on, :Mr Ford, but I was sometimes

late, and never felt I had tobethere at any particular

minut.e.

Q You testified this morning that you considered it

important that you do be present at such times? A I

considered it to be impo rtant to be present every time.

Q. And yet, a.lthough the jurors were to be present

court that morning at 9 o'clock, for the purpose of
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1 examined, you s ta ned togo to the Socialist headquarters ,
-' ,

2 to talk to Job P..arriman.

3 l,fR POGERS: That is oqj ooted to as leading and sugges-

4 tive; argumentative and not cross-examination, argumenta­

5 tive, especiall:r.

6 THE COURT: The objec tion on t.h e ground it is argumen-

7 tative, is sustained.

8 JUROR VJILLIA}!S: May I ask a question?

9 Tt!E COURr: Proceed, yr Willie.ms; you may.

10 JRUROR WILLIAMS: "\Vbat vas the first business to be

11 t ransac t ed tha t mo rning ? A The court calls up --

12 th ere ,vere 50 jurors, as I recall it, d ra\lIJl1, and his cus­

13 tom vas to call in about 10 or 15 who would ste,nd here by

14 the rail, and asle them to present any excuses they might

15 have for not serving -- for instance, they were too old,

16 if they were probably old or deaf or not naturalized, or

17 something else; thatvtas the business; not eocamination by

18 la,...yers.·

19 JUROR WILLIAMS: And then the next 10 or 12? A Then the

20 next 10 or 12 until the whole panel were passed over and

21 such excused as the court knew coul d not serve in any

22 event, so as to save the time of the court in ~ining by

23 lawyers.

25 s el n we!' had 2~ chane e to ask any questions at that time.

26 It generally took a,bout half a day, wh ere there Vlere 50.

24 Q. And vas tmt vrork done entire]y by the Judge? A



1 JUROR WILLIAMS: That is all.

2 1,fR FORD: You stated on direct ecamination, Mr Darrow,

3 that you '\frere the author of v arious books? A yes,

4 amongst the rest, that pamphlet which you have there.

5 Q, "Crime and Criminals tl ? A Yes sir. That is, that

6 is the stenographer's copy of an address that I deliver­

7 ed off-hand in the county jail to the prisoners.

8 Q, You have read it since? A I have.

9Q And found it correctly expressine your ideas?

10 :MR ROGERS: Objected to as notcross-e)::~ination, incompe­

11 tent, irrelevant and immaterial. Now, I will faY this to

12 counsel, I will enter a stipulation rig ht now. If 1.fr

13 Darrow's philosophy or views on general socialogical

14 and ethical subj acts are mattersof consi deration here

15 and they will put in 1fr Darrow's books, I vd.ll sent a

16 copy -- three or four copies in and let the jury read

17 e:ery book he ever wrote, at their leisure. I doni't

18 believe that thfY can take isolEJ.ted sentences or a part

19 of a little book, 'but if counsel will allow me to put in

20 Ur Darrow's books, I will put them all in in a very mo­

21 ments w'ithout the slightest difficulty.

22

23

24

25

26



26 1 ~R. FORD. There is no objection before tte court.

b

21m. ROGERS. Object to it as not cross-examinatiQn.

3 MR. FREDERICKS. If the court please, the forepart of this
to

4! witne'3s IS examination he was permitted to testify as' the
A

5 books he had written and to his business capacity and the

6 idea of giving his sentiments and ideas. He named two or

7 three or more books that he had wri tten·--l. don 1 t remen.ber

8 that te named spec if i cally --said he had wr i tten sorre essays

9 and said he had written a couple of novels, and it is pos-

10 s iel e he s ?i d s orr,e other s . Now, :.::. Ford is asking him about

11 another cook th,:t he now states that he wrote and which he

12 I did not mention at that time, and 1 presume is going to ask
I

13 him if he did not express certain things at ttat tin,e and

14 if those are not his sentiments and ideas. If the Court

151 will excuse me for not rising--

16 THE: COLJ"R T. Cer tainly •

MR • FRJ::DERICKS. If -the matter was pertinent at all as

showing d~. Darrow's sentiments, it is pertinent now on

cross-examination to show the rest of them.

20 MR. ROGERS. If counsel will mention--

21 THE COURT. 1 do not unierst-:md th:1 t the direct examination

22 went into the quest ion of his sentiments as expressed by

23 his writings; a mere statement of fact that he had written

24 some beoks; that he had been a lawyer; that he h~d parti-
I

25 I cipated in a number of fe tures that had been more or

I26 i in the public eye, ir..the public mind, but 1 think the

I
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1 tion it is not cross-examination is well taken.

2 MR • FREDFR lCKS. 1He! 1, your Honor--

3 MR. FORD. On t'he morning of :,lr. Franklin's arrest, Mr. Darrow'

4 I did you entertain the following state of mind: Ther e is

5 no such thing as a crinje, as the word is generally under-

6 stood. 1 do not believe there is any sort of distinction

7 between the real ffioral condition of the people in and

8 out of jail. One is just as good as the other. The people

9 here (in jail) can no more help being here than the people

10 outside can avoid being outside. 1 do not believe that

11 people are in jail because they dea.ire to be. They are in

12 jail sin;ply because they cannot avoid it on account of

13 circumstances which are entitely beyond their control, and

14 for which they are in no way responsible?

15 !viR • ROGEHS' HoW', if your Honor please--

16 MR. FORD· Vlai t ;jus t a moment--

17 MR. ROCERS. No, 1 am go ing to take an except ion.

18 MR. FORD. Q. Did yeu not entertain--

19 MR. ROGERS. 1 am going to take an exception right here.

20 MR. FREDERICKS.We]l, take it.

21 MR. ROGERS. 1 illn going to take it. If your Honor please

22 your Honor just ruled they cculd not do that. ;.lr. Ford in

23 the teeth of your Honor's ruling and in defiance thereof,

24 turned around and started to read an isolated sentence.

25 1 stipulated he c'ould put in k. Darrow IS works.

261 is atten,pting to read, and viciously and intentior.ally, .

I
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1

2
ir. misconduct, to read that which your Honor told him w~s

not competent. Now, what kind of law are we living under

tion to that.

here? When your Honor rules, as 1 understand that is the

and intentionally and viciously reads, and doesn't correctj.y

Counsel turns around in~mediately

Now, if YGur Honor please, we take an excep-

rule we have to go by.

61
I read at that.

7

offer books in evidence at this time because no foundation

MR • FREDERICKS • It becomes another matter when asked

tion to this Witness in which 1 m:=t.y use materie.l from v7hat-

Witness on cross-examination. 1 am now propounding a ques-

Your Honor has ruled practically that we cannotMR. FORD.

under other circumstances and entirely different ruling

undoubtedly would be made under the circumstances.

has been laid for their int~ction, either by reason of

any matter that has already been brought out on direct

examination or by reason of any statements made by the
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ever source 1 desire to obtain it, but 1 am asking him for

the state of mind on Tuesday, November 28th. If he admits

that state of mind 1 will never be able to put in any books

containing thos e statements, be cau" e he admits that s tate of

mind on Tuesday. If, on the contrary, hedenies he had that

state of mind then 1 have some foundation for offering a

COOk, and will present an entirely different situation to

your Honor. It-is possible 1 may lay the foundaticn for

introduction of this book. It is possitle 1 could not,
the -

Whatever/reason may be 1 have a right to use the book 0
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any other material in my possession for the purpose of

framing a question to the witness as to his state of

mind on Tuesday the 88th day of November, and that is the

object of the question, to get the state of his mind on that

dayj if he admits that the sentirr:ents expressed in my

question correctly express his sentiments on that day, the.t

is the end of the book, if 1 am using a book--and 1 can

state frankly that 1 am in framing my question--nowever, 1

am not asking him if he wrote this book, 1 am not asking

h:m if he delivered such sentiments on another occasion

before the county jail of Chicago or some other place, 1

could not under your Honorts ruling, 1 am not--

THE COURT. ji~r. Ford, your explanation cle:lrs up one thing,

th~'you understood the court to sustain the objection to

your last question upon the ground tha t no foundation was

laid. Such was not the rUl~ng of the court, however, the

objection was sustained upon the ground that it was not

cross-examination, 60 your laying the foundation wi1l not

affect the matter in any way, shape or form.
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1 IfR FORD: I am not laying the foundation for the introduc­

2 tion 0 l' th e book.

3 THE COURT: I do not see how you can &pect to show the

4 state of mind on the 28th day of Novem.ber by lectures or

5 addresses or books of previous E!}q:>ressions of opinions

6 upon matters not connected with that case; if they are

7 instances relating to or connecting that particular case,

8 tneyare pertinent, but you cannot ~~nder so far afield.

9 MR FOW: The point is that I put to the witness on the

10 stand this question: uDo you believe, and did you believe

11 on November 28th, that a manshould be punished merely be­

12 cause he has broken some law~and he shoul d answer , IfI

13 do not"; I have then a right to follow it up, "D6- you not

14 believe and did you not then r.>eli we that it being vvrong

15 to punish a man for violating the statute law, that the

16 s tate is doing v;TOng in attempting to put peopl e in jail

17 for breaking the laws, is it not, andvas it not, on Nove.m-

18 ber 28th, your opinion that you, as an attorn~, had a

19 right to do anything you saw fi t to do, that woul d pre-

20 v en t the law from puni shing a man, di d you no t think you

21 had the right to violate that law yourself if it was nec-

22 essary ; wouldn't the endsj ustify 'Hhatever means that

23 you saw fi t to employ, wouldn't your duty be, under your

24 peculiar opinions, to prevent the state from punishing

25 the individual; isn't your opinion that the individual

26 not responsible for his actions, but that society is
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1 responsible; that they can no more help being in jail

2 tlJan they can being out of jail; that the place "where they

3 happened to be is one over which they have no control

4 and is one in which the circumstcmces of society force

5 them. and it is vTrong to punish a man, to hold him respon-

6 sible for mo:ee than his capacity calls for?"

7 THE COURT: I see your point. Mr Ford. but I do not think

8 it would be prop er eros s- examination togo into th e ques-

9 tion of the abstract view of a d efend&nt, or that the de-

10 fendant might 0 r might not have held upon a given sub-

11 j rot as cross-examination responsive to the di rect ex:amina-

12 tion brought out here.

13 MR ROGERS: In reply to counsel -­

14 MR FORD: The court has ruled --

15

16

17

MR ROGERS: -- I am going to reply to your absolutely
mis~

incorrect and knowingly and int entionallylrepresenting

the defendant --

18 MR FORD: Now, if your Honor pI ease --

19 Int ROGERS: If your Honor p~eases, the abstract proposi-

20 tion as to criminal responsibility has been a considera-

21 tion of philosophers for a long time. I presume I have

22 a shelf at home filled with books --

23 UR FORD: We will accept the stipula.tion -- we will ac-

24 cept the stipulation to af'fer this book inwidenfe.

25 MR BOGERS: you offer all his books?

26 l~R FREDERItB'KS: All right; offer EVery one of them.



1 MR ROGE.RS: R1:~mington--
. ,

2 :MR FREDERICKS: Everyone of them.

3 UR ROGERS: And the jury may read them at their leisure.

4 THE COURT: \Vhat is this stipula tion?

5 UR FREDERI CKS : Thatall of th e books wri t t en by CIa renc e

6 Darrow may be admi tted in evidence.

7 TP..E COURT: It is admitted and stipulated that the jury is

8 to have these books?

9 1,fR RaGERS : Yes sir.

10 M'R FREDERICKS: They are evid enc e for whatever pnrpos e.

11 THE COURI': To read and take them to thei.r room, at this

12 time, or at the tim e of deliberation?

13 MR FREDERICKS: Oh, no, ase.ridence.

14 THE COURT: I Vlant to know \mat the stipulation is.

15 MR FREDERICKS: The stipulation is they are introduc ed

16 in court as evidence, and the jury is entitled to see

17 them.

i8 }IR HOGERS: In vi 6\V 0 f the fact t hat counsel has mis-

19

20

21

22

23

24

stated, an~ deliberately misrepresented Mr Darrow, I v~nt

to complete my statement --

THE COURr: lA:r Roge:::,s, you cannot assume ttat --

:MR ROGERS: If your Honor pleases, in view of the fact

whether intentional or not, he has misrepresented this

defendant --

25

26

THE COURI.': That -is different.

l~R FOP.D: Well, your Honor --

UR ROGERS: -- Then I propose to state this· --
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1

2

3

4

MR FORD: My argument was addressed entirely to th e court,

It assumed. a hypothetical state 0 l' mind.

TEE COUffil: What books are now offered? State what are

the books.

5 J,ffR ROGERS: If your Honor pleases, I propose -- you miCSht

Vlould have.

THE COURT: I assume coun sel has sane proper state:rnent

he v.rants to mleke, an assignment of error or something of

vie,Ys --

MR FORD: Very well, then, your Honor, I vdll ask your

Honor to do the same with1Jrr Rogers making the statement

here as to what the state of mind of this defendant is,

as a matter ofiac·t, before the jury;

the kind.

MR FOPJ): ne interrupted me in the middle of a question. be­

fore I had completed my quostion, your Honor. Your Honor

allowed him to interrupt me.

TBE COURT: II I' Fo rd, if h e hadn t t in te rrupt ed yof!. }" I

MR FORD: I will vant to --

as well quit it, because I am going to say this, lhf the

court do es not stop me.

MR FOPJ): We ask the court to stop you.

MR ROGERS: If your Honor pI Ee.ses he has stated here 1fr

Darrow has by hypothesis and inuendo entertained certain

25
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MR. ROGERS. After counGel has quit and made his statements

that the jury be excused.

already stated that it was going to hear you.

The court had

If your Honor des ires

My remarks to the court are not

No, sir, that does not go.

TTTE COURT w· t . t ,. R tr:, • vIal a ffillU e, ,:d. ogers.

his state of mind was.

it cannot go on, ;,:r. Roger s •

mind was, it would be a mere conclusion on his part as to w at

Ttake such a remark. You have a proper remedy; your appeals

your remarks just now and the court will not perrrit yeu to

he is not under oath and cannot testify and even if he were

under oath he could not testify what '.ir. Darrow t a state of

ing you, :.:r. Rogers, but there is absolutely no excuse for

MR. ROGERS. Very well, sir.

THE COURT. And the Court has been very indulgent in hear-

purpos e of addr es sing th e jury.

any evidence in this case and counsel has no right to chal­

lenge the correctness of my remarks t~ this court for the

now he is too cowar dly to stand here and let me nJal:e mine.

to hear from :h·. Rogers on that point, then in order tha.t

the minds of the jury may not get confused and accept the

staten,ents of If.r. Rogers when as a matter of fact they are

not eVidence, 1 would ask if the argument is to continue

to this court heNe never been in vain, and you want to be

heard, but you cannot stand here and say that counsel

on the other s ide' is co~ardly and make that kind of a
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1 MR. ROGRRS. If your Honor pleases, when 1 find myself

2 wrong your Honor saw me do it th is morning, you wil"· always

3 see me stand up and admit it. You saw me this morning,

Honor's rnisaPl~ehension or condition of mind that was not

against it and 1 think 1 am Within my rights.

when 1 might have stood still and taken advantage of your

MR. ROGERS. 1 an:; frank to say 1 am not accustomed to mask

,
1 say that counse]s attempt

You have used a word that

Counsel has undertaken to take an unfair

THE COtffiT. Just a moment.

you wisb to wi thdraw it?

rm.ROGERS. 1 do not, sir.

cannot remain in the record Without being expunged. Do

THE COL~T. That word cannot be used in th~t" way.

MR • "ROGERS. I call ycur Honor's attention to--

my statements.

to know where a man's rights commence.

am wrong.

true, you saw me take it back. 1 'Ni~l always do it v/hen 1

THF. COtffiT. Not when you use that word. We never wi'l get

anywhere in the calm deliberation of a court of justice

when words of that kind are used.

advantage here to influence and misrepresent, and 1 protest

THF COURT- Not when you--

MR • ROGERS •. --And if 1 am not wi thin my r igh ts 1 would 1 ike

41
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not do it for him, if 1 made a statement and he wanted to

make a reply he certainly would have the right to dd it

and 1 would not attempt, by calling attention to the fact

he still wanted to ask a question or anything else, to shut

it out. Whatever explanation can there be for it? Now,

if your Honor des ir es to say anyth ing to me 1 stand he: e

ready to take it.

THE COURT. Be seated, Mr. Rogers, and cons ider this matter

a little bit. 1 regret to take up the time on it, but it

is better to do it now than to let these matters go too

far. The Court felt, when the incident occurred yesterday,

that it was cleared up this morning, as the best kind of

an illustration of the unwisdom of alloV'ling a hasty remark

escape from counsel 1 s lips. These matters tend to

detract from the fairness and continuity With which the

case is put before the jury and 1 am greatly shocked that

counsel should use the term in a moment of excitement and

insist upon it at this time, particularly when the court

had even before objection to the word that was used,

indicated that when the time came he would be heard. The

judge of this court is in control of the situation and not

counsel on the other side or on the defendant 1s side,

and the weeks and months we have worked here together

justifies counsel in assuming that he will be heard; he

h3.s always been heard if there has been an occasion, when

counsel he-AS urgently desired and sho"llm a real desire to
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heard on any occasion and on any question, and if he has

been shut off 1 do not at the pref3ent mon;ent recall it.

1 am going to pass the incident for the pres.ent and 1

trust before the afternoon adjournment counsel has ha~ a

chance to think the matter over, perhaps, 1 trust will

take proper occasion himself--l have confidence in it.

VIe will pass the matter for the present until the afternoon

adjournrrent, but 1 repeat, these things cannot and wi}l not

be permitted and the matter will be brought up again

before adjournment. Now, Mr. Rogers, 1 will hear you.
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1 MR ROGERS: If your Honor 1'1 ease, the int errogation of

2 counsel, after having been told by your Honor that books

3 ofMr Darrow's would not be permitted t and after my state­

4 ment that if they proposed to introduce Mr Darrow's books

5 and his philosophy as a whole, I had DO obj ec tion, and it

6 might all go to the jury in order that they might under-

7 stand this man who sits before them and his views

8 couns eil then deliberately picked up a pamphlet and a ttempt­

9 ed to read a few sentences therefrom indicating by his

10 argt.1l1lent a moment later in the presence of the jury that

11 such views vrere criminal, conducive to criminality, we

12 might say, indicating in his mind that there was no such

13 thing as criminality. That, if your Honor pleases, is not

14 justified by the conditions; it is not. justified by the

15 fact that the defendant is a witness on the stand, and

16 that he is being cross-examined; his views upon the sub-

17 j ect are the views of the very best \\1'i tel's upon penology

18 that we read today. I venture to say I have as good a li­

19 blary on th e sUbj ect as exists in California, and I ven­

20 ture to my not one well considered book Ibn! that library

21 takes any contrary view from trat. If your Honor pleases,

22 the other day there v~lked into my office a little man,

23 not as tall a.s my table , carrying a little cane about as

24 long 8.S 8. table knife, and he sat up in a cha.ir and his

25 feet could not get to the floor. I s at and talked to him

26 for the first time, for a few moments, and Ivas astonish



be damned in a criminal court room vmere he is on trial

that is criminality -- and counsel has argued here in the

marvelous little pe rson who ret there because his 1 egs were

for his liberty, because he says the fame thing s t rat

one sire and one dam because. of their qualities, J:-ow can

it be it is criminal for a man who thinks and vmo reads to

presnnc e 0 f this jury -- everyv.rell-c onsidered philosopher

in the world, from Mark Twain's suppressed book "Vfuat is

man II which has just com e on, only 300 books -- from Hark

Twain's book to Com-lte and Kant,You will find it all

through the philosophY of this world -- when we breed horses

for the purpo se of form and figure and speed, and we use

and amazed at the marvelous intell rot and wonderful capa­

city of mind that that deformed little person showed.

I am tol d that he has three or four brothers and sisters

not as long as from my fingers to my elbow. Now, if

who are the same; his father ,and mother are people of

ordinary size and caJRcity, and through some mismating

tha t we mow nothing about, they have produc ed th ese dwarfs.

Now, if your Honor pleases, I stand here~ and if it is

criminal, let it be so -- I stand here to faY when a man

is born wi th a deformed brain, when a man is born with that

kind of short stature, and where a man is bornwith his fore-

head, as this :rYlan's legs were short, that there is no

such thing in the eyes of God and man as condemning that

man for his state of mind any more than I condemn this
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1 philosophers have Eaid for generations?

2 Now, havi~g answered what I believe to be a misclmracter

3 ization of the defendant, and very briefly at t mt, having

4 in mind nothing but to reply to his little argument we

5 are v.hat we are born to be, subj ect, of course, to the

6 intervention of Divine Providence and the vall, if Soy~ may

7 have on e -- but who knows whose vall it is I have. I

8 did not choo se my father and my mother -- my grand parents-­

9 at all. And if they handed tom e an insuffic i ent vall

10 along ~ith an insufficinnt lung, it it criminal for a man

11 to deliver an address 8,S I am doing now, mying that this

12 belief, as it is the belief of every right-thinking man,

13 is criminal? Now, counsel has stood here and denounced

14 this man because he said men vrere not responsible for vIDat

15 their ancesters handed down to them, and I sew it is mis­

16 conduc t, if your Honor pleases, it is the philosophy 0 f

17 the last 500 years. There Vias a time when they dragged

18 out of court daily, and they hung for stealing

19 small things. In th e days of Charles II there vvere over

20 200 things for whic h they hung people. In the days of

21 Christ, \vhen they brought the woman to him, charging her

22 with adultery, they said, "It is tile law of Uoses that

23 she should 'be stoned"; in other words, that she shoul d

24 be killed. And '''That did th e Haster $y? "Go thou and sin

25 no more", and "Hei ther do I conde7YJn youu.

26
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thct.

fit.

THE COURT· 1 understand the entire books are before the

18 it stipulated that

jury.

them done as is done, to pick up one isolated statement--

MR. ROGERS. An essay on Tolstoi. 1 do not care to have

them put in, if your Honor pleases, just simply to have

demnation of a defendant for his philosophy which is right

in the eyes of every right thinking man in this country.

1 stipulate, in accordance with the offer

THE WITNESS. There is an essay on Tolatoi you might add to

taken to the jury room and they are at perfect 1 iberty to

read everythir:.g he wrote in those books •

THE COURT. Those tooks are now introduced?

Now, 1 characterize that as misconduct, a con-

of ;ilr. For d, that every book '\lr. rarrow wrote, "Res ist ing

Evil", "Farmington", "The Persian Peril" and other essays",

and !tAn Eye'for An Eye," "Crime and criminals", shall be

TtJE Vll'l!~ESS. 1 suppose the jury are not bound to read then;.

THE COTJRT. The jury may read so much of them as they see

MR • FREDERICKS. And ,they nay -be referred to in argut1ellllt

the same as any other thing that is in evidence .•

THE COURT· Anything that is intnoduced in evidence n-,ust

be read to the jury unless there is objection to the con­

trary, probably with the excepticn of Webster's Dictionary -,

ordinary docu~ents must be read.
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eR XItd., Clt1tIlr" ttw~---&'d-89' ... >

1 these will not be read here. in court before the jury but

2 that such portions may be read in argument as counsel may

Yes, 8 ir •MR • ROGERS.

3 I desire but that the jury may take the entire books to their

4 I room and read such porticns as they may desire.

51
6 JUROR GOLDING. Yeu mean separately or all at once?

7 THE COURT. All go to the jury under the at ipula t ion when

8 they retire for deliberation.

9 MR • ROGERS. They don't have to wai t to br ing in a ver diet

10 until they read all those books.

11 MR. DARROW. May 1 make u suggestion?

12 TH.E COURT. Yes, sir.

13 MR. DARHOW. 1 don t t like to appear in this Dr .JYckle ::lnd

14 Mr. Hyde way.

15 I THE COURT. Your suggestion is now made as counsel and it

record stands that W3.y then we will have--

evidence and not read to the jury, so if that is--if the

counsel said he would not stipulate that they might be in

the
For "read to the jury" 1 sUbstitute~stipula-

tion that the bsoks may be delivered to the jury and if th

time or tomorrow morning and read them at such time as they

MR • ROGERS.

see fit or not at all, ~8 they see fit.

MR· FREDER lCKS ' If they ar e in ev idence they ar e in ev idence"

Now 1 'lm afraid that we don't quite agree, As 1 remember I

will so appear in the record.

MR. DARROW, Why not just let the jury take them at this

des ir e to read them they may.
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MR • FRFDERICKS. No, your HOLor, 1 think if they are intro­

duced they should. fo llow the usual rul e of other ev idence,

that is, they are in evidence to be used in argument, and

all such portions as we want to, but that, of course,

requires the re~ding of them to the jury, unless counsel

Vi a i vesth9. t •

MR • ROGF.RS· 1 waive that and substitute therefor the

statement th~t the jury are at liberty to take them as they

retire from the box now as soon as 1 can get the books, and

la't;· them take them and read them themselves. 1 wi] 1 not

put them in evidence to be manhandled and misquoted in

ar gumen t, but if they can 1:e given to the jury and let them

understand them :md read them at their leisure, if they so

desire. If they do not desire they need not read them.

Le t theni go as a bul k into the jury roofl', now, and 1et thes

jurors read them if they so desire, read any parts of

the ill that they so desire.

MR. FBEDEPICKS· We couldn't stipulate to that.

MR • ROGERS. We are not going to put these books in and hay

you pick cut isolated sentences here and there--

MR. FREDKRICKS. Let's Withdraw them and take it up an-.ong

oursel ves •

MR. paGERS. 1 would rather the books go to the jury. They

can take the m to tne ir r com and read them at the:;r 1 e isur e,

any part of them.

MR • FORD. The law provides a time wher. the jury is



1 entitled to have evidence inthe case, and that is when they

2 retire for deliberation. They are not allowed to take the

3 exhibits withthem to their jury room at any other time: and

4 counsel knows th'lt is not proper and not permitted by law.

5 Now, it is stipulated they are iDevidence and they are

6 in evidence.

7 THE COUR~'.· It is on unusual method. 'Perhaps if we pass

8 it for a moment counsel cm agree on some method and

9 acconplish the end which seems to be desired. Just p:::.ss

10 the matter for the present.

11 MR. FORD. You don,t desire to m~ke any stipul~tion with

12 regal~d to this one book, "Crime and crami.nals"7

13

14

15

16

17

MR • DARROW. Perfectly willing to let that go with the rest1
THE COUR T • pass the entire matter.

lAR. ROGERS. • Let that go with the rest.

1m. FORD • Q At noon on Tuesday November 28th, or rather

at 2 o'clock on Tuesday November 28, 1911, you saw

18 Davis and he rel;orted to you at that time what had occurred

19 between Franklin and hirrself. Yeu gave him a check for

20 $lO,OCO at that pla'Qe, 1 believe you testified to all that

21 this m.orning? A 1 said there was some doubt in my mind,

22 :.\::. Ford, as to whether 1 had seen rim before, as you

23 recall;

one statement of vester day and explain it 7

24 Q You wish to change it in any way now? A Not at all.

25 l:uli going to let it stand as it is. 1 don't think

26 sun-.nied it. ui) carr ectly. Pefor e 1 for get it, n, ight



Tuesday aftern:on? Did you stay in court a11 afternoon?

in Washington.

Couldn't

1':[: er e did you go

6303
A In reference to the

A I j u.s t :lsk you DOW because 1 migh t not think

time 1 went to Vhshington.

Q Yes.

Q In reference to w}at matter?

fairly agreed at the K3I1kakeee conference.

Q peturning to tb e events 0 f Tuesday.

Francisco to X':ticago. 1 am very sure that is correct.

Q You stopped off at Chicago and he went on to Wash ing-

ton? A Yee, and 1 followed a few days after and met him

of it again.

Q . Yes. A 1 have been th inking th at over f3 inc e ani 1

believe 1 came to California before 1 came to Washington.

ton, and :,11'. Tveitmoe was onthe same train going fron: San

and 1 went from there to Chicago and from there to Washing-

very well come :t e.c e and then enter f:,y appe 3.rance ar.d not

go on .vith it, so 1 suppose 1 mU2t have agreed with them

at ttat time.

Q Were you retained--that ,is, did you agree to defend the
the

McNamaras at/Y~nkakee conference or was it postpor;ed

until the W2shington conference? A No, 1 suppose 1 had

i,~r. Compers c3Il1e to see rr,e before 1 came here, at Kankakee,

A 1 don,t renier,ber. Perhaps that record wi11 snow.

With the other gentlemen whose names 1 mentioned,while 1

was trying that case, and spent an evening with me. As

qUick as 1 got through with·that case 1 came to Los Argeles
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-Q I don,t know, 1 will look at it. The minutes of

at what time court convened, but on the rrJinutes of Monday,

November 27th, in the cade of People vs J B McNamara,

people inthe examination of juror Edward Haskell. Further

hear ing was continued to November 29, 1911 , at 9 A.M.1l

"The jurors, counsel ani the defendant J B McNamara

present and the examination of juror Edward uaske1lr..resumed

"'or. 'tlaTr ow, does not say
""

" show that the case was resumed:Tuesday, November 28th,

The record, as you will observe,

and challenge by the people for muse; said challenge

is resisted by the defendant. Guy L. Rockwell and

William C. Doane are sworn and testified on the part of the

1

2

3

4'

5

6

7,

8

9

10

11

12

1 read you the latter part of the record, which shows,

page 294 of the minutes of Judge Bordwell t scour t--

"Further hearing was contir.ued until Tueaday November 28,

13

1
14

15
1

16

1911, at 2 P.M." Having read tha+: record to you from

17 MR. DEHM. If 1 may suggest, if you follow thoa e minut es

18

19

out you will find that they examined the venire of jurors,

if you follow those minutes, there are other minutes of

20 that day. That probably occurred in the morning.

21 l'ffi • FORD. The clerk has reversed them. 1 have read the

22 morning in already. 1 just wanted to refresh your r ec01-

23 lection th at on Tuesday afternoon you w er e in cour t and

24 were examining the juror Edward Haskell. Do you remen.ber

25 thesxamination of :,:". ijaskel1? A yes, tnat refreshes my

2G reCOllection, :,:.'. Ford. 1 remember ;.~f. Haskeell's examina
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1 very well, it was a long one.

2 Q There was considerable strife between you and ;,lr. Horton

3 of the District Attorney's office that afternoon over

4 I Juror Ed\vard Haskell? A 1 would not call it strife. We

5 always got along nicely.

6 Q Some contention about it? A Sallie contention.

7 Q '1'hat is, you were each fighting each other on the questio

8 whether the Juror should remain? A 1 wanted to keep him
-\

9 ood he wanted to let him go.

10 Q And he asked a good many questions which you were

11 denouncing as improper at that· time? A 1 am not much of

a denouncer, :.1r. For d.

MR. APPEL. We object uponthe grour.d--

14 A Probably objected to it.

15 UR • APPEL. --it is not cross-examdnation and imrnater ial.

16 THE COURT. Object ion overrul ed.

17 MR • APPEL. We except.

18 A 1 remember the examination perfectly \VeIl, probably as

19 Vi ell as 1 do anything that occurred, probably a little

20 better, onaccount of some peculiar circumstances connected

21 T ith it, and 1 know it was vepj_ long on tbe part of :::r.

22 Horton who took generally a long time when be wanted to

23 d isq,ual ify a juror, andtb en he call eel two inp eaching

24 witnesses whose testimony I also remember. 1 'think tbEt

Now, :.;:. :carrow, if you had made up yourMR. FORD.

WOt~ld have taken ·up all the afternoon.

:: I Q

!
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1 r"ind on 7Sunday that both J J and J B MoNamara wer e to

2 plead gUilty, if you entertained the same state of mind

3 on Monday and again on Tuesday, why did you res ist so

4 I vigorously the attack upon the ccmpetency of ;,ir. 'p,askell

5 as a juror?

6 Iv1R. APPEL. Wait a n:ollient, we o::,ject to that upon the ground

7 it is incompetent, irrelevant and' immateri.al and not cross

8 eX;j,mination.

, 9 A 1 Vi ish you would Yvi thdraw it.

10 THE COURT' Objection overruled.

11 A On Saturday and Sunday and Monday 1 had no mor e doubt

12 abcut the settlenent than we do about affairs in life that

13 seem settled, although nothing is settled until it is

14 finished. On Tuesday morning :\ir. Franklin Vias arrested.

15 1 didn't know how it ',"lould affect the s43ttlemen. 1 was

16 very much afraid on Tuesday and al Wednesday and not il

17 Thux2day night that all our efforts would go for nothing

18 and these men gJight be killed and there was nothing for us

19 to do at any time except to go right along just 8S we had

20 a lwiys gone inthe face of tbe ne',vspapers 2.Ild the public

21 and everybody concerned, until it was tiled.

22 Q you saw ',:1'. Steffens on Tuesday noon, did you not, at

23 your office, the day of Franklin's arrest?

24 MR • ROGERS. Now, if your Honor please, he has asked that

25 twice inthat forin.

26 I MR. FORD' 'Peferr ing to that event again.

I
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1m. ROGERS' Counsel has been told by the witness. 1 object

to it as not cro6s-examinat ion. Couns,elhSts been told by

the witness he didn t t say it 'if aa at noon.

MR. FORB. Q you saw Mr. Steffens during the day between

10 o'clock and 4 o'clock on Tuesday, November 28, 19117

A Undoubtedly. 1 saw him Tuesday afternoon.

Q, And at that time you h ad a discuss ion Vi i th ;111'.

Steffens with reference to the effect of the arrest of

Franklin? A 1 aid.

Q Upon the compromise of the case? A l,did.

Q, At that time did ;,11'. Steffens tell you he had just

come from the office of Meyer Lissner? A He had two

conferen ces with me.
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1 Q Did he not. just after :B o'Clock, noon. on TuesdaYf

2 the 28th day of November, 1911, at your office, to you, he

3 and you being alone,~ say to you that he had just come from

4 the office of Meyer Lissner? A I am. not certain; I think

5 he did.

6 Q And did he not at t hat tim e and plac e say to you that

7 he didn't think the arrest of Bert Franklin v.ould have

8 any effect upon his people, and that the compromise could

9 go through? A He said he didn't think it would, but I

10 could very easily see tJ:Rt it very likely might, as it

11 did.

12 Q, When did it? A It cost J. J. five more years.

13 Q That is your conclusion? A Yes. Yes, that is all

14 it is, too.

15 Q Did you not send Mr Davis back on Teesday or Wednes-

16 da.y to have a conferenc e -,"lith Captain Fredericks in re-

17 gard to this matter? A Wednesday?

18 Q V.hat time on Wednes day? A You knoW' it is cl ear out

19 of the question for me to be sure. I think it was in th e

20 morning. It might have been at noon. I heard Mr Davis

21 testimony and hevas not certain, either.

22 Q YOu h Word 1fr Davis say, however, that the District

23 Attorney said it would go through? A I did.

24 Q And that was on Tedn esday mornin.s ,November 29th?

25 A I think Mr Davis did ~ot say itwas on Wednesday mor

26 in~.
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.f't He said i t'7RS Tuesday afternoon or Wednesday morning,

did he not? A Uo, he di d not; he said hevB.s not sure at

what time it \vas on Tuesday.

Q You 1m err from the District Attorney, through Mr Davis,

before Wednesday afternoon, that the arrest of Franklin

would not affect the compromise of the case, if you would

consent to let J.J. plead guilty? A Now, you are refer-

ring to Tuesday or Wednesday?

Q At any time up to Wednesday at 2 P.M. A No, I did

not.

Q Didn't}J[r Davis so repo rt to you? A No, and he didn't

so testify

Q Did you not on Tuesday afternoon calIon Captain Fred­

ericks at his office in c ampany wi th ]!~r Davis? A I

think not; I think it ,vas Wednesday.

Q Wednesday morning or afternoon? A That I am. not c er-

tain.

Q Was that not refore Wedn esday aft emoon \\h a.1 you were

examining Juror F...askell? A I am notcertain of that.

UR ROGERS: Wasn't the ecamination 0 f Haskell on Tue'Sday?

MR JiREDERICKS: Tuesday and Wedn esday. A Better find

that now, and make sure of it. As I recall it you said it

was on Tuesday.

l~R FREDERICKS: The examination was on Tuesday afternoon

and went over until Wedn esday morning.

HR ROGERS: Couns el just ::aid on Y,ednesday afternoon.



reported to me on 1!}edn esday when h ecame back?

1

2

MR FORD: Ivas incorrect. A l[ay I tell what Mr

h')11o~ .

Davis

3 Q No. I vlill come back to that a little later.

4 lJTR ROGERS: I think) if your Honor please, the qu estion

5 calls for it.

6 ]lR FORD: There is no question before --

7 UR ROGERS: Th e question calls for it. I think the wi tness

8 has a right to r elate it.

9 1JrR FORD: The last question vas answered and t he wi tness

10 wants to lmow if he can t t volunteer something cone erning

11 the ne xt day.

12 THE COURI': Let's s ee what it is. A I think you asked

13 me if Mr Ford --

14 (Last question read by the reporter.)

15 A When Mr Davis reported to me on Wednesday

He also repa rted the same day as he testified,26 A

161m FORD: That is th e one I obj ec t ed to, your Honor, un­

17 til I reach it.

18 TP..E COURI': I asked ]Jr Darrow Ylhat it was, not for an

19 explanation of what it was, what answer it was you Ylanted

20 read? A It was the answer to ~I[r Ford t s question prec eding

21 that, Y:I'hether 1rr Davis did not report to me onWednesday

22 tha t 1,l[r Fredericks yas willing to roc ept that.

23 THE COURT: Do you \-vant to ,0; 0 back and amplify your

24 answer to that question? A I wanted toadd to it.

25 T"rill COUID': I think you ha'le a right to it.



neither.of us nwer knew until after a long conference on

went? A I think not.

years, with a life sentence for j .B., but they both must

63~

I

put through the agreement for ten
./

that he would still

A The record shows trat, does it?

}./[R FREDEHICKS: yes. A Well, I did, undoubtedly, th w.

]JR FO'RD: And it\"B.s onThdnesday that the challe~e for

cause of the People against juror Edward F.a.skell was allo

pI ed together.

Q Well, onYJednesday, November 29th, 1911, you continued

the eocamination of the jury" did you not, Ur .!arrow?

Q Didn't you and Mr Davis together go to the office of

Captain Fredericks on Wednesday, November 29th? A We

might have g one at one time on V.ednesday, but lirr Davis

first made a report on Wednesday.

Q. Did ravis visit Captain Fredericks before the time

you went in company with him? A I think so.

Q Now, at the time youYJent in company with Captain Fred­

ericks -- or, with 1,~r !avis, to Captain Fredericks' office,

\'hat confersation occurred at that time and place?

A The same conversation, trat they must plead together.

Q JUst ghre it to us in th e words, as n ERr as you r em-

ember it. Can you remember it? A lvrr Fredericks said

both pleas must be entered together, and ~on e of us

Thursday, that we could get j. B. to plead gUilty vrlth j.j. I

}JR FORD: But weren't you present with llr Davis when he
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ad; is t1al.t correct? A I don,t remember, l[r Ford, but I

will assume it is, if you are reading it from th e record.

Q I am reading fror.a. the record and the record so says.

A Well, I will assume t hat is right.

Q You remember tha t among others the name of Mr Krueg er

was drawn in th e box on V;Bdnesday, J. J. Krueg er? A I

have .nodefinite recollrotion of Mr Krueger's name~ Of

course, I have known sine e it was, and undoubtedly kn ell

it then. I think theecamination of 1fr K:l1eger must have

been short, and no special features about. it.

Q. And you recall that on rednesday, the 29th day of Nov-

ember, 1911, at the hour of 5 o'clock in the presence -­

in th ea:f't ernoon of sai d day, that the cou rt drew anot her

venire? A I don't recall it. I have h ea.rd it read in the

record, and I have no doubt it is true.

Q Well, you kept informed as to what was being done at

the time? A I did, Mr FOrd.

Q And your lack of recollection is due more to a lack

of memory at t his time, and not due to a lack 0 f informa­

tion at the time? A Oh, no; I knew then.

Q You knew tmt then? A I did, I knew everything about

it.

:MR APPEL: You mean an ord er "'as na de to draw a jury at

that time?

lIB FORD: And the names were d ravm, the 50

were drawn containing the names 0 f ~ rsons



5-:13

1 the afternoon of Wednfisf:iil:y the 29th. Ann that those

2 jurors v18re ordered to be stml!Jloned and brought into court

3 on Friday, the 1 st day of Uovember at 9 0 'c10c k in the

4 forenoon of th e Is t day of Uovember? A If th e record so

5 states, it must be.

6 MR ROGERS: The 1st day of Uovember?

7 MR FORD: The 1st day of December. 1911. V.ell, you had

8 assurance at the time that ttat juryvtas dra",m that Captain:

9 Fredericks would accept a plea of gUilty on the part of

10 ;r.;r. to t en years, is that correct?A He said he woul d.
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said, and he says that he didn't know at tbat time, during

Wednesday after receivirg thut inforn.:ation whether the

We dnesday, both from Mr. Davis and from :..lr. Fredericks ttat

he had the assurance that the arrangement 'Nould go through,

provided both of them should plead gUilty, that is what he

Q And he also told you at that time that he would aocept

a plea of gUilty from J B and not Gppose life imprisonment?

MR.'·APPEL. The witness didn't say that. He said on

thing could go through or not.

A 1 was going to aWi that, :/lr. Appel.

MR. APPEL. That is wha~he said.
disposed

A 1 didn I t know Wednesday it w'oul d be of 1 had very
1\

seri0us doubts, although 1 thought ~ttwould.

A 1 hadMR. FORD. Q On Wednesday evening at 5 P.M. __

9s 1
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8

9

10

11

12

13
°

14

very sericlus doubts all the time, from the time that

Franklin wqs arrested until we fir-iehed.

~ You knew on Wednesday evening at 5 P.M. that Captain

Fredericks insisted onboth JJ and J B Pleading gUilty

19 together at the same time'? A ° 1 did.

20 Q You knew tat your clients were willing to plead gUilty?

21 A SeparateJy, yes.

22 Q You knew, however, that they would not plead guilty, or

toAnd. you labored all day 'f'hanksgivir.g Day

23 a t leas t J B wo-uld not--l "Hhdr aw that quee tion • You knew

24 that J 3 had also said th at he would not plea.d guil ty if

A yes.25 his brother 'Nas ser.tenced, up to that time'?

261 Q

I
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1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

tha t det el!llIinat ion? A Vie labor ed sometinie Thanksgiv irg Day,

t"v'lO or tbr ee or four ~eur s •

Q You went there at W"hat time inthe aftern ..-on? A 1 couldn

say, half past 10 or 11.

Q In the morning. And 'at 2 o'clock :,;i. Davis telephoned

Captain Fredericks that they had not come to any satisfactor

conclusion as yet? A I couldn!t state.

Q you heard him so testify on the stand, did you not?

A Yes, but 1 couldn't state.

10 MR. APPEL. He is ask ing for his inf or mat ion.

11 I MR. FORD. Q Ali a rna. t ter of f act you had not come to any

12
1 determination at 2 o'clock, is that correct? A It would

13 II

I be entirely out of question for me to tell the m~nute or

14 even the hour that it was disposed of.

15 Q You labored under great strain that day in trying to

16 g3t them to accept the terms? A Not only that, my

17 mind is so constituted it don't relr,ember little things

18 I ike that.

19 Q Little t~ings like that at the end of a big case.

20 A Like the fraction of a minute or the fraction of an

21 hour, when it happened seven or eight montrs ago. There

22 wer e other th ings in it.

23 Q Isn't it a fact it was late in tre afternoon? A 1

24 bel i e ve i twas •

25 Q And isn't it a fact,your best recollection, it was

26 ! long after 2 0 I clock in th e afternoon? A No, I have no

I



1

2

recollect ion as to the t ime·- exc ept it Vias in the afternoon

and 1 think late.

3 Q Do you recal] where you had lunc~that day? A 1 don't,

4'

5 MR. APPEL. W]-at he ate?

6 rvm.FORD. It w-:,cs Tr-:anksgiving Day is the'only reason that

7 1 'thought you n,ight remember.

8 A 1 missed my Thanksgiving meal. We had company at the

9, house j 1 didn I t get it • It didn't bother me much because

10 1 don't eat turkey.

11 Q Who employed Governor Gage to defend liir. Franklin?

12 un. APPEL. 'We object uppn the ground tfiat it is not

13 cross-examination.

14 TEE C01.JR T • Overrul ed •,..,

MR. APPEL. We except.

A ..Jo. Davis told me he did.
o

MR. roRD· Q Who paid him? A

18 unless ;,lr. Franklin did.

Nobody. Never got a cent,

19 Q Don't you know of your om kmwledge that ,'lire Franklin did

20 not pay him?

21 MR. APPEL. Objected to as immatorial and not crose-

22 e xan,ina t ion?

23 A 1 couldntt know of my own knowledge.

24 THE COURT. Objection overruled.

25 MR. APPEL. v; e except.

26 MR. FORD. You gave ;.:r. Franklin,through l.fr Davis.



1

2

3

G'·<!"i'v ~ I

one thousand dollars on one occasion and three hurdred

dollars on anotber occasion after his arrest, is that

correct? A Tbat is right, as 1 remember it.

4 I rf\.
Q When was the ~.p300 given to ~.~r. Franklin? A 1 couldn't

5 t ell you, ;.ir. Ford, when ei tber VI as given to him. 1 think

6 it W @Os along the middl e of the montYt of rec ember or alit tIe

7 before-_l couldn't tell you--l think it was sometime then.

8 No, 1 think the $300 was given to him because be said he

9 wan ted some Doney on account of his daughter's wedding.

10 Q, was that after hie arrest? A Yes.

11 Q A few days? A ~hat W,-'8 a few days after.

12 Q And the other $1,000 was given about the 15th of December?

13 1 don,t care ~bout the exact date? A 1 710uld th ink so.

14 1 wouldn't want to be held down to days, but 1 think

15 a bout that date.

16 Q, You suspected on Noven;ber 28th, as soon as you heard

17 of the arrest of Franklin, that it was a frame-up?

A

Q

18

19 I

20

21

1 had all kinds of theories, and that was one.

And did you suspect Mr. Franklin of having framed anythinJ

up? A T didn t t kno-N. 1 thoug:-t it WJ.s entirely possible. 1

I
And yet yeu paid him $1,000 on December 15th, or approxi~

22 lliately about that date, notWithstanding the fact that

23 you suspected him of having framed sorrething up?

24 MR. AP'PEL. That is argumentative and no~sross-examir:ation•

q,nd he c:m drav1 what inferences be wants.

25 I

2G I

I

":le object to that as argumentative. ue can



1

2

3

THE COL~T' Objection sustained.

MR. FORD. You advised with :,:r. Ft'anklin about the case up

until January 14, 1912, did you not? A No, 1 talked to

4 ' him a few times about it.

5 Q, When and where did you talk? A Oh, 1 don,trecall. He

6 would drop in my office occasionally.
~

1 don,t thihk very

7 often, ani once in a while say something about it.

8 Q D.1dyou fNer ask him onNovember 28 th wher e he got the $4,0

tha t was taken from captain Wh it e or Ivir. Lockwciod?

not. I,ir. Davis did. pe told me.
T'

A I did

11 Q In your presence'? A No.

12 i Q Did you ever ask Franklin yourself at any time where he
-

13 got that money? A 1 don, t think 1 ever did.

14 Q Wasn't the reason that you did not ask him beca"Lise you

151 knew of yoU' own knowledge where he got it? A It was noti
I

16 I no such reason.

171
I

18 I

19

20

21

22

23

24

25 I

2G I



You consulted him daily about the qualification of

E e was in possession of your opinions and sec ret be-

liefs concerning the various persons vJhowere called as jur-

No.ors? A

jurors? A I got his opinion and discussed them.

Q Did you not, on November 25th, at the Alexandria

Hotel, in th e presenc e of:Mr Steffens, when you

Mr Franklin to :Mr Steffens, say to Mr Steffens,

6:r, 9
1 Q, You knew that itv'RS charged that he had given $4000 to

2 Captain White and that 500 of that had been transferred to

3 Mr Lockwood? A I lmew the charge, certainly.

4 Q ADd you never had enol~h curiosity to ask him personally

5 about it? A VJhy, I had enough interest in itt 0 haeve him

6 asked by his couns el.

7 Q, He had been your employe up to that time? A yes.

8 lrR ROGERS: That is some-"'What argumentative.

9 THE COURI': Do you obj ect on that grourd?

10 n'I:R ROGERS: yes sir.

11 THE COURT: Sustained.

12 UR FOtID: You met him daily during tla t time? A What

13 time?

14 Q. During the latter IRrt of August, September, October

15 and November? A I met him daily.

16 . Q Talked with him every CRy about the prospective jurors?

17 A I wouldn't say every day, but probably almost every

18 day

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26
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1 . lin is on e of the few men whom I can trust wi th my inner-

2 most secrets? A

3 Franklin.

I don't recall ever saying that of Mr

4 Q At that time? A If I did, I think IYRS mistaken,

5 but I don't recall.

6 Q Assumirg you vlere mistaken, you didn't believe you

7 were mistaJm. on November 25th? A I didn't say anything

8 of that kind.

9 Q Well, I am asking you. A I don't recall any such

10 languag e, and don't t bink I arer said any such thing.

11 Q You di d have confidence in Mr Franklin on November

12 25th, 19l1? A I did.

13 Q And having that c onfidenc e in llLr Franklin at that time,

14 isn't it possible you did say that to Mr Steffens?

15 MRAPPEL: Wait a moment. We object to that upon the

16 ground it is incompetent, irrelevant and immaterial, and

17 notcross-examination, argumentative, .going into the 'realms

18 of possibility and imagination.

19 TEE COURI': Obj ection su stain 00..

20 UR FORD: ·Do you recall whether you did arr did not say it?

21 l{R APPEL: Now, he has anS\vered. I object to that.

22 TEE COUT{l': Objection sustained.

23 J!:R:roRD: I dan, t· think he has.

24 THE COURT: I think he has answered it.

I don't recall saying it. Isn't that all a man can25 A

26 say? You know something of psyc hology.



b~21

1 JirR FORD: It is liable to mislead Mr Appel. He thinks

2 that is something like palmistry.

3 Q You know~r Franklin was employed to investi gate the

4 trial jurors in the McNamara case by you about August 9th,

5 1911?

6 MRAPPEL: Wait amoment. 'lhewitness has answered that

7 time and time again) at the beginning 0 f his exa'lllination.

8 They asked him whEn he anployed him) about what time he com­

9 menced) and then they went to work) your Honor, and th En re

10 fresh Ed his memory. 'lhey got it when it ""Jas.

11 THE COURT: Let me have that cpestion. (Last question read

12 by the reporter.) I think that matter has been gone

13 into.

14 JER FORD: On direct examination only.

15 THE COURT: I think oncross-e xamination.

16 MR FOTID: I aske d him about anployment on th e grand jury t

17 your Honor, but not on the trial jury. He said, if your

18 Honor will recall, that he stated som €bod'y else had em-

19 ployed him vri th referenc e to th e grand jury before he got

20 here, or found him anployed. I haven't gone into the trial

21 jmry at all oncross-examination. A You are YvTOng about

22 that, llr Ford. I said after I got here, the first I heard

23 of him he came in- one day on account of having 1:een called

24 by somebody else.

25 ER FORD: The point I vvas making was in referenc e to th e

26 grand jury. I haven't say anything in reference to th e



h'l'J2tL_

}ER FORD: yes.

1,lR ROGERS: yes.

tent.

I·

I vdll get you that

A Ee was employ ad by the defense.

Is it theBain entry you \~nt?

TEE COU HI' : yes.

entry.

lvrR FORD: Well, you were th e one who paid him?

A Well, I was th e cashier, and paid him.

Q And youwere th e one who Employed Mr ravis and Mr Scott

and l~r F..arriman and Hr lJcNut t? . A Not Mr :earriman.

lvTR HOGERS: I thought tmt was gone into to a certain ex-

I don't remember th e ecac t date.

TEE COURT: Obj action overruled.

TEE COURT: Obj 00 tion 01 erruled.

THE WITNESS: .Am I to answer that cp. astion?

A

~ftR FORD: All but Mr F.arriman? A Mr Davis had been spa

trial juro rs.,

A Not !JLr F..arriman.

l1fR GEISLER: It is dm"ffi to the office.

llR FORD.: Can you send for it?

MR GEISLER: It is not here in court.

MR ROGERS: I \"dll get it for you.

lfR FORD: That is aJ.I I desire to look at.

THE COURr: You may te right about t hlt.

MR RHID: Hay I see thlt book, 1,fr PDgers, to YJhich the

wi tness' attention was call ad the 0 th er day?

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14
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16
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18

19

20
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23

24

25

26
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1 to before I came a,nl was recommended, and SO\"B.S ][1' Scott,
-.

2 iSl.~d I app rev ed it) and did go to them. and I pr esume i b's.s

3 I who you can e.mployed them.

4 Q You were the paymaster of all of them? A Of those

5 laYiY ers, yea.

6 Q. And of Ur Franklin and ].rr Harrington? . A As far as I

7 mow, yes.

8 Q, The first jury venire was not c1ravrn. until Spptember

9 30th, 1911. Calling yourEtttention to the records that have

10 been introduced in this case., you recall tlB. t fact? A If

11 that is the record, yes.

12 Q. lr r J?ranklin, during the month of August) after the

13 9th, about L, 20 days left in the month) Bnd during the

14 month of September, v.asengaged in looking up the jurors

15 generally a.s their names appeared upon the great general

16 list of trial jurors? A yeS, he bad the whole list and

17 was looking them up.

18 Q. I presume tha t one of the rea6Dns that induced him to

19 enploy Hr Franklin was the fact that he had lived here)

20 or you were informed he m d lived here a great n!lIl1ber of

21 yEars, o.nd bad quite a wide personal a.cquaintance among the

22 persons likely to be ce..lled &.S jurors; is that correct?

23 }m APPEL: We obj 00 t upon th e ground he has no righ t to

24 presume arwthing himself and then tell th e \7.i.tness Ua t he

25 presumes it. Let him ask him vhy he vms Employed and he

26 caD tell you.



an obj ection here. Mr Ford stated he had no t finished

his question, e.nd the court therefore, permitted the ques-

tion to t,e finished. Now, we have one question before the

court. I assume that the obj ection stated and the questioltll

\vas partly asked. Obj ection overrnl ed.

G224
am I right in so presumi~1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

lvTE FORD: IS that presumption

A That is only l~r Ford --

TE3 COURT : Wait a minute.

UR ROGERS: We take an exception to it.

MR FORD: It is answered.

THE COU Rr: No. it is not cmswered. l[r Appel 0 ffered



1 MR. APPEL. We except.

2 A It has been answered.

3 MR. FORD. 1 think it has. 1 said tha t was one of the

4'

5

6

7

8

r easona.

(). Wren the first jury list was drawn on~-&l,1911
you went over the liat at once with ;,:1'. ~anklin, did you

not? A 1 did, all of us did.

Q And you noticed among other names the name of Bain at

13 A To rrlY mind the report was favorable.

9 th2.t time? A It was on the first list, wasn't it? If it

10 w"as 1 notic ed it.

11 Q. ycu had a favorable report upon that name at that tiree?

unfavorable in it.

object to that--go ahead.iJ'T • t tl.aJ.. a momeD , weYiR • APPEL.

his being aworking 1I13.n and his age and there was 'nothirg

A It was not unfavorable, certainly.

Q. That report had been made by one Eckmand on August

18th, as it appears in your book that was here the other

day, is that correct? A That 1 don't recall, ::r. Ford.

The report itself 1 considered favorable onaccount of

MR • FORD. That report.

12

14 ,
I

15
1

16 I

17
1

18
1

19 I
I

20 I
21 I

22

23

24

25

2G I
I
I
I

Q "What 1 mean is this: The.t at that time you had before

you a report that had been made by one of Frankl in' 8 employ s

;,ir. Ec-kland, who had visited Mrs. Fain on Al.gust 18th

1911? A I d id •

Q l n addition to that you had a personal verbal report



e X:?, min ation and 0 n direct examination that w'tenever ~i t

jurors or on these jurors, as the question indicates.

THE COlR T • Objection overruled.

A 1 didn't ~sk for special

He told me what he personally knew about him.

He told you how \VeIl acquain1ted he was with him?

1 don,t recall how well, but he said he knew him.

When that first venire w~s dra1;m you directed ;fir. F-.cank-

A

Q

A

IvrR. FORD. Q Go ahead.

I.iR. APPEL. Except ion.

lin to get additional special reports on these jurors in

addi t ion tt) the gener al reports wh ieh had been previoulsy

prepared, is that correct?

W~. APPEL. We object to that because the witness has not

from :.!re Franklin as to what he personally knew about Bain?

so testified. The witness has already testified on cross-

was nece8sary they asked him for special reports on any

particularl juror they wanted to find out about. He has

not stated that he asked him for special reports on all the

1

2

3

4'

5

61
7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

r epor te on every jur or. Wher ever a juror was pass ed by both

sides in that case, you know it took a good while before

we would have enough men in the bcx to draw, probably from

22 two weeks to thr ee or four, a..'"1d whenevery one was pas s ed

would other',iise, so 1 would have a special report on \ir.

by both sides so we knew the only way to get rid of them

was preemptory, 1 would get a special report,:md son:etimes

more than one. 1 ·,l\las as careful as 1 ~: new how to be.

23 '

24

25
I

26 i
I
j



1 Q Did Llf. Frankl in ffiake a daily report to you concerning

2 investigations during the day? A No, he would make it whe -

3 ever it 113.6 called for or we thought it was necessary.

4 Whenever any of us would ask him;he made it to me no more

5 than to any other la~~er inthe case.

6 Q Were those reports of lvlr. Franklin in writing or verbal?

7 A Both ways.

8 Q Did he make you written reports as to what his ffien had

9 been doing, or were his written reports confined to his own

10 personal Dvestigations? A You mean written reports what

11 his men had been doing towards looking up men?

generally :';r. Fr3.nklin would report to one of us lawyers.

verbal, no doubt, that is, he would have a man look it up

or two men look it up. If we had a special report then

Q, What 1 am getting at is this, ;\,ir. narrow: Mr. Franklin

made you two kinds of reports, one report signed by the

man he employed, and other reports signed by hirr£elf, as

that 1 received of the first character were the ones that
to

were tabulated in a book, and those purported/be signed by

certain men who had made that investigation.

A The only repQtts

1 don, t know, sometimes wr i tten and sometimes

to what he hirrs elf had been doing.

Q Yes. A12

13

14
1

15

1

1

16
I

17
1

18 I
191
20

21

22

23 Q Men who were employed by Franklin? A Men en,ployed by

24 him. After that if any of us wanted a special report he

25 would either make tr-em verbal or in writing, and then on

26 scme occasions got other people to make us special report



to it.

numbers of those.cases because 1 C3l1 call your attention

he had visited Mrs. Bain the wife of juror fuin?

A T'P'e repor t;· in the book shows that the int erv iew er, who

MR. APPEL. Wait a momsnt--we object upon the -ground it is

calling for hearsay.

1 withdraw it. That is correct. Q Frequently

Q Frequently lirr. Franklin in his investigatL~)ns of jurors

would interview the members of the family of the juror, is

that ·corr ect?

:.lr. Frankl in made r epor ts to you that he had v is i ted

some relative of the prospective juror, is that correct?

A A number of repor ts showed tlitl't.

Q, Do you recall whether or not he ever made any report

MR .FORD

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9
1

10

111
12 I

I
13

14

15 &er it was, visited Mrs. Bain.

16

17
I
I

18 I
191

Q ~ou are referring to the report of August 18th?

A yes, the Eckland report.

Q But you had:G-"'ther reports? A 1 donlt recall, ;,lr. Ford.

Q This report that is in the book is not the original

20 report? A No.

21 Q It is merely memorandum made up fro~ the original report?

22 A It is a copy of the original report, as 1 understand.

23 It was made in :':r. Fr ankl in t s off ice and made so each one

24 of us would have one.

When w~s this book made up that has been exhibited in

cour t? It was made up--it gr e'''' , that is, certain numbeA

25 I Q

26 I

i



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

111
12 I

13

14

15\
161

number of ir-vestigations would be made and kept on these

sheets and was in a book, and thends others were made and

kept they would add to it.

17

18

19

20 I

21 i
221

I

23 I
I

241
I

2- I0,
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1 Q

G
"·_",,,.,. ",

·:;JU',l

Have you the reports of what l.Jrr Franklin \~s doing on

2 Octob1:3r the 4th? A I have no Y€po rts of 'What he was doing

3 any day, other than is contained in the book.

4 Q l;ave you any reports in that book of "fhat hewas doing

5 on Oc tober 4th?

6 1~r.R APP:BL: Wait a moment. we obj ect to that --

7 A I don't know --

8 MR APPEL: Wait a moment. V\i3 object to that as not c ross-

9 eocanlil'lation; incompetent, irrel Eg'ant and immaterial; not

10 the best evidence; not cross- ecamination.

11 THE COURi': Objection sustained.

12 1,fR FOB]): The wi tness has testified, your Honor, as to

13 transactions between himself and Mr Franklin on that day.

14 1,rR APPEL: Because the witness is generous enough to allow

15 you to interrogate him improperly is no reason,why \':e

16 shoul d alloVl it.

17 THE COUHI': The obj ection is sustained.

18 lfLR FORD: tr Did l.fr Franklin make any report to you that he

No: not that I

19

20

had visited Mrs Bain onFriday, October 6th, 19l1? A

he make a repOJt on Friday, October 6hh?

Did

21 recall.

22 No. Did he make a report to you as to what he did

23 do that day a.t all? A Nothing that I can recall.

25 book, except ·,"that YOU$w.

24

26

Q

Q

F.ave yon it in that book? A I have no report in th e

I only saw the one to which rn:t- attention had been



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

directed. A There is no oth erreport regarding M'r Rain

in th e book.

Q P~ve you a report of ,mat Franklin did on tbat day?

A I movl one thing he did, but I have not ecamined the

book to find out what else he might or might not have

done, and probably could not tell if I did.

Q Tha t is on e thing t hat appears in the book of reports?

A No, 'one thing that appears by my check of October 4th.

Q That he went to a bank and deposited the check? A NO,

I have no such memorandum as that at all. I mow he got

th e check.

MR APPEL: On th e 4th, you mean? A Yes, the 4th, that is

what he is referring to.

1m FORD: P..ave you any report of a vi si t made by Frank-

lin on ].[rs Rain on Oc tober 6'th anywh ere? A I have answer­

ed that, 1fr Ford, didn't I?

MR ROGERS: Answer it cgain. A I will answer it again.

Uo.

Q Now, did you r ec eive any report fran him on October

6th,' verbal 0 r otheT"!Tise, cone erning Mrs Iain? A Noth­

ing tha. t I mow about.

THE COURT: The court will take th e aft ernoon rec ess at

thi s tim e. 11.1." Rog ers?

MR ROGERS: I have deliberated over the matter, sir, con­

sidered the record,' and the record speaks for itself.

sonally, 0 f course, I did not charg e ur Ford



GJ3~

1 coward. I my his acts in trying to prevent me from st!,;;

2 ing my side of the matter, vvhich he had intentionally

3 brought to your Honor's attention, in that fact, I reiter­

4 ate it; that act was not brave; if one man speaks on one

5 side he should permit a statement on the other side also.

6 THE COURT: :\rr Rog ers, he had no povver to pr event your

7 spealdng, and did not do it.

8 MR FREDEHICKS: I think we can consider that on our si de,

9 a vri thdravval 0 f th e word lIcoward tl.

10 MR ROGERS: I did not apply i t personal~ to 1lr Ford.

11 Mr Ford and I are personally good friends. I referred to

12 his acts.

13 TEE COURI': There are some oir these so-called' short and

14 ugly words t hat have no p1hac e in a court room, and that

15 is one of them. r feel, e entlemen, that it is a ver:I

16 serious menace to the process and proper conduct of a

17 trial to apply these words, no consequence what counsel

18 on one side or the other may think, it is of no conse­

19 quence, going further, what the fact may be; lawyers are

20 not on trial here in their conduct, and we cannot stop

21 wery few minutes to try a la"vyer on ei ther side and de-

22 termine 'Nhether or not he is gUilty of some such charge.

23 I expect~he gentlemen on both sides to strictly live up

24 to the avowal made here in court a few days ago, upon

25 their honor as gentlemen, to refrain absolutely from per-

26 sonalities. The statement \ms made, and an acceptance



1

2

3

4

G,jl I
byc' the prosecntion;the statement by ur Rogers is a wit hdrawal I

and I deem th e remark and the incident closed, but I feel

it proper to avail myself of this opportunity to call

the attention of counsel to tffit positive assurance.

5 TtrR ROGERS: In view- of the \Yay your Honor puts it I

6 never have been unmann erly in a cou rt room in any court,

7 or wer had a disposition to interfere with jUdicial pro-

8 ceeding s, and I certainly have too high a regard for your

9 Honor to interfere wi th your Honor's Fsonal good will

10 and the control you r F~nor may personally have over this

11 court room, and if your Hono r feels that it is not a mat­

12 ter for the other side, but a matter of consideration

13 for your Honor, if I have offended you r Honor's kindn ess

14 and disposition, I apologize to you, sir.
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1 I am. not disposed to think myself, which I certainly ha.ve

2 a right to maintain, I had not a right to characterize the

3 conduct, not Mr Ford himself, a,s I rey Vle are too good

4 friends, and have been since we ',vere 1:X>ys, I know he is

5 not a covvard -- I saw fit to my his action in that bahalf

6 was cowardly, and I have not s €len any reason to see yet

7 that it vas brave -- but I apologize to your Honor for

8 inte:r-fering i7ith your Honor's court-room, if that is the

9 view you r Honor takes of it, and I take pI msure in apolog­

10 izing to you.

11 THE COUR'lI: It is not a personal matter at all, but the

12 1 ass we have of th ase suggestions or personali ties, th e

13 better VIe vrill get along, a,nd th e mOBe quickly we 'will

14 get this case to th e jury. Bear in mind your former

15 admonition, gentlemen of the jury, and ~e will retire for a

16 recess of 10 minutes at this time.

17 (After recess.)

18 1'1lR FORD: Have you tm t book of repo rts?

19 MR HOGEP.s: We cannot take these pages out, if your Honor

.20 pleases, a.nd we 'will just simpl~· ask 1fr Ford not to

21 1vtRFORD: I ask the same privilege be granted to me that

22 was granted to them.

23 THE COURI': You had a loose-leaf book, in ....ihich those

24 things can be done, but it is a different physical condi-

25 tion; it is a very easy matter to have a copy of it.

26 UR FORD: I am just 2.S much entitled to the whole of
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1

2

3

4

book as they vreere to the telegrams; hovlever, if the court

holds I shall not look & t any pag e but tha t, I shall not

attempt to, but incross-examination of this witness I am

entitled to the same courtesy --

5 THE COURT: It is not a matter of courtesy; it is a mat-

:mRE COURT: I have not ml ed that at all. Let us cross

it to you.

I will let th e court examine it and if he finds one give

lffi FORD: Well, that cas e is ended. Are th ere any 'reports
L-

A There ,tre not.
mfrom Ur Fowl er in that book?

one bridge while we are at it and take that one up and

if another application comes up Y-!3 will detelmine it then.

At the present time there is only one question before

the court, and t hat is acceded to, but you cannot tear

it out because itdestroys the book.

URi. FORD: Let me look at tffit pag e then, that is, if .

the court rules that is all I can look at.

ter of right.

llR FORD: It is a matter of right,. then.

:MR ROGEHS: We are }M'fectly \dllil1~ t lRt :Mr Ford shall

have what we talked to the witness about, anything con­

nected with that, I do not think we are compelled to

show him this whole book, and let him go prGwling Eround

through it and see all these reports.
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UR FO GEES: Oh,--

UR FORD: I will not look at any others.
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2

llr Eckland, that is a copy of the original report that

\"8.S handed to you by 1fr ~ranklin, is it, lfr Darrow?

3 MR APPEL: No, your Honor. The v:ritness has not stated that.

4 M'R FORD: I am asking is that trne.

5 MR APPEL: No. He said 1J['r Franklin furnished three or

6 four copies, one for Each la\\'Yer. Now , that is a copy

7 furnished him -- A Just a minute.

8 MR FORD: This is not a copy of any report ,. furnished

9 som ebody el see A That is Mr Davis' book; it is not

10 mine, but mine is like it, so it is a copy of a report of

11 some original, I assume.

12 Q, This is a copy of a report that \vas handed to Mr

13 Davis and you had one just like it? A ~ duplicate, yes.

14 Q, And where is the original that vms handed to you?

15 A The original was not handed to me.

16 Q, Where is the book that v:as handed to you? A I don't

17 know wIere that is; it is just the same as this, however.

18 MR FOP.D: I will mad this int 0 t he record, if the re is no

19 objection, so that VIS can:refer to it. (Reading:)

20 "Robert T. Rain " I suppo se that should be "Ft! Rain?

21 THE YITNESS; I presume so. I am willing to correct it.

22 HR FORD: (Continuing reading:) "~.ge 69; residence, Los

23 Angeles; American; carpenter; veteran G.A. R.; protestent;

24 republican; ovms home; ExaTlliner; Equibable Savin gs lank.

25 wife has no decided opinion; on his vay East to Hew York t

26 attend encampment; does not belong to any union; will be
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1 absent about one month. (Vvife)(August 18) 1911.) (Eck-

2 l'lmd).t1

3 Q I call your at tention to th e wo rd "wife" occurring in

4 parenthesis. That indicated' to you that the investi-

5 -sator had got his infornation fran th e wi fe) did it no t?

6 A That is what it indics.ted. It might or might not make

7 it very good.

8 Q. I beg your~rdon? A Vthic h might or migh t not

9 make it very good information) but that is what it indi­

10 cates.

11 Q. So you gathered from t mt that Mr Ecklund had visi ted

12 the v;tife of l!r Bain on August 18th) 1911? A If that is

13 the date.

14 Q yes) that is the date. A. No) I don't need to look

15 at it. Yes.

16 MR APPEL: The date of the report?

171m FORD: yes) thecate of the rerort is August 18th) 1911.
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none; 1 have never been through that book for that pur-

MR. ROGF~S. No, they do not run alpbabetically.

l { ..•
~Ll •

A ':,;hy, 1 practically know there are

Do you know whether there are any ~ther reports on

Bain in that book?

Q yes. A As far as 1 knew.

pose, but I am sure there are no others, ;,ir. Ford. TIe have

THE WI TNFSS • 1 can br ing that up in the morning.

Q

I think they started that the first and added to, here,

all these ure later inthe book and those are earlier and

1 thiLk that indicates it was very early (indicating on

visit--August 82nd, August 23rd;- Aug'ust 21--

book. )

MR. ROGERS. 1 don't know wbether that is the date of the

report or the ,date of tbe visit, it might be the date of the

~~. FREDERICKS. How do these come, by alphabet?

an index for that and the index refers to this page.

Q Where is that index?

Q Now, :"r. Darrow, is tbat the only report you ever got

MR. GEISLEF. It is down at the office.

rvm. FREDERICKS. What is there on the book, if 8nything, to

indicate the date the repor t was made? A Why, the only

thing to indicate is, I think the leaves were put on at the

back, and that is ne arthe front.

Q On where 1 A 1 th ink the leaves ar e put on--excuse me--

through Franklin or any of his investigators concerning

Ro b er t F. Bain? A You me an in wr it i ng ?
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.!VIR • FORD. Q NOw, you stated you received no report, as

far as you reeo llect, fr om ;,:~. Frank1 in on the 6th of October

concerning any visit to Mrs. B3.in on that date?

A 1 recall none.

Q Did you eJer r eceive any report on any date tha t he ha.d

visited Mrs. Bain on October 6th, 19117 A No.

Q After examining l..ir. Bain in court you 'IV ere satisfied that

the answers agreed with the previous infonIiaion which you

had upon the sUbject and that he was a juror satisfactory

to you? A Well, the anSWers never agreed exactly With

the pr e vious informat ion, but 8ubstant ially, in this case,

but 1 was satisfied that he was very rl!uch better than the

or dira.ry run for me; it was very hard to get an un­

prejudiced juror in that case, there had been so much tal~

about it, so much feel ing over it.

Q All in all you were satisfied, then,thAt he would have

been a sa.t isfactory juror? A t wa6--1 '!lont say 1 ·..U1S

satisfied, 1 thought so •

Q You still think so?

MR • POGERS· What is that?

(Question read.)

Mr _ ArrEL. It makes no difference what he thinks now.

TPE COURT- Objection sustained.

A 1 don, t know what 1 ttl ink about it.

MR • ronDo Q' Coming d.own to the--may i have that check,

A The one we iutroduced;"':r. Sl::ith, the Fra:--kli:l check--
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2

you mean?

M'R. FORD· Yes.

6 'J ' r>',I' U
~ ,

3 THE CLERK•. IS that the l'-'-st one introduced?

4 UlR. FREDERICKS _ Yes, the last check.

5 THE CLERK. It is in the clerk1s office.

6 MR • GEISLER. We asked that it be kept in a B·,,' safe place.

7 THE COURT- ves, there were sever9.1 exhibits t;;;.ken down

8 to the cler k t s off ice.

9 MR. FORD·· 1 hope tbis clerk is a safe place-

10 THE OOURT_ We~l, a safer place.

11 THE CLERK. Shall 1 get it?

12 THE COURT' ~es, go and get it.

13 MR • FORD. Q When Mr. Fr:Ilkl in had gone over the Jist of

14 jurors With you, the original list, before any venires

15 '1te:ee drawn, he told you he was acquainted with George

16 N. Lockwood, did he not? A 1 do not recall it; he might

17 have.

18 MR • FORD' Did you find any repor te in thel'e, ~:r. Rogers?

19 ~m. ROGERS. Suppose 1 do. 1 want to see the materiality

20 of the m.

21 MR. FOR D. 1 ~Nould as k permiss ion of counsel to examine any

22 report they find on Mr. Lockwood there.

23 r.m. ROGERS •. What for? Hew does it become cross-examina-

24 t ion? :,;r. Lo ckwood was n ever in th e box.

25 MR. FORD. \','e11, r,e has testified, rowever--

26 MR • paGERS· Pe testif'ied he never spoke a word to :,;r.
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1 Darrow in l; is I ife or lll~ narrow to him.

2 MR • FORD. But the witness on the stand has testified con-

3 cerning his relations with ?lr. Franklin and ~,~r. Lockvvood.

4 MR. APPEL. But, he S9.ys that ;/tr. Franklin never talked wit

5 l;im about ;,1r. Lockwood.

6 A 1 said 1 could not rec~ll that he had, th9.t he might

7 h2i.ve.

8 MR. FORD. Q You do not recall that you ever had :my

9 reports on Mr. Lockwood? A 1 recall that there is a

10 report in this book.

-11 Q On Mr. Lock-vood? A ~es.

12 MR. FORD. May 1 Bee that I' eport?

13 MR • Al''PETJ' No, it is not a report from l'ir. Franklin.

14 'MR. FOGF:PS. It is not a report from Mr. Franklin at all.

15 MR. APfEL. The only cross-examination on this witness

16 would be in reference to what conversations he had, either

17 written or verbal from ;,!r. 'li'ranklin concerning Juror Lock-

18 WOOd, that would be cross-exe,minationj if he had 100,000

THE COURT. Ttis application is not made to the court.

eX~lination and, furthermore, there is not any power in

the court or any onc else to corrpel a defendant to furnish

any efidence.

MR. paGERS. ~~8 it a personal request?

l;lr. Ford is addressing counsel.

letters or reports from 100,000 different individu~ls

. given to him concerning Juror Loch/ood it would not be eros
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you fLiean, do 1 recs.11 --you said, do 1 recall ever having

LochroOd, certainly.

Q Do you recall having discussed the report of i,lf. Lockwood

A Now, wait a mi.nute, :,~[. Ford. Do

1 do.

MP. FORD' Tbat is it •

THEWI 'I'KESS • If you do not obj ect 1 do not object.

MR. ROGERS. A personal request. Very well, 1 am per-

fect1y delighted to accolliillodate you. j
MR. FOnD. Q You do not recall having ever read a report

about C,ir. Lockwood? A 1 recall having read a report 9.bout it.

I

read a report.

with ;,:r. Fr ank1 in?
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1 Q Yes. A I don tt know ':'Jhether you think I mean I recall

2 having read one before i tvas drawn out of th e box, or

3 ever, as you said -- I just dontt ','vant to be misunderstood,

4 and I do not suppose you want m.e to be.

5 Q Do you recall discussing on that general list, before

6 the first venire vas drawn, the sUbj ect vlith ]}fr Franklin,

7 the names of some err the persons wi th V'vhom he was personally

8 acquainted? A I do.

9 Q Do you not recall having discussed the name 0 f Georg e

10 N. LockvlOod? A I do not.

11 Q Before September 30, 1911, with Mr Franklin? A I

12 do not. I 'might have, but I do not recall it. I can tell

13 you thereason why one was true and the other not, if you

14 "vish.

15 1,!R APPEL: Explain it, 1:rr Darrow.

16 ':MR HOGERS: Go ahead and explain your answer.

17 THE COU1iT: GO ahead. A Mr Bain v~s passed by both

18 sides up to peremptories, and we invariabl:r got all th e

19 information ~e possibly could, before we ever left a man

20 in th e box. 1fr LOCIDyood was never called in.

21 Q I am talking about Lock,Yood.

22 MR APPEL: I mow, a.nd he says he can explain the differcmc

23 in his mind; the statement concerning one --

24
\

MR:EPJIDEHICKS: If the wi tness understands v.'e::are talking

25 about LocbYood. A No, Mr Fredericks, he says, "You

26 recall discussing other names, but you do not recall



Vlood ll
; evidently drawing the inference of "lirby one and not

the other.

1,fR FOP.D: No. I asked you if you do not recall having

discussed with Mr Franklin the names of various person s

vii th whom lvrr Franklin was acquainted, before any venire

vas called, and you ~vid you did -- I did not ask --

l[R ROGERS: Let us see if he did.

A If you asked thatcpestion, I answered it wrongly. I

do not recall any particular name I discussed with him

before any venire vas dravm.

Q I vms not asking you that question. Do you recall the

fact ,v/heth €!I:' you recall the names 0 l' not, tha t you di d

discuss vii th Mr Fran klin the names of persons wi th whom he

vas personally acquaint ed and wonder whether 0 l' not they

would be called in to the box soon, or things 0 f t ha. t sort?

A Leave off the last and I will answer it yes.

Q I will leave off the last, then? A All right.

I don,t remember \'hat I wandered.

Q Answer th e rest of the question. A I will answer

the rest of it yes.

Q Did he ever at any time or place tell you that· George

N. Locbvood was a former associate of Mr Franklin's in

the sheriff's office? A I don,t remember it, but it is

very likely he did.

Q Did it ever happen, Mr Darrow, that a report came in

concerning some personal friend of 1Er Franklin's, some re
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1 po rt made by on e of Franklin's employes, whic h Mr Franklin

2 disagreeq. wi th?

3 l,lR APPEL: V:ait a moment. y.re object to that because that
,

4 is a conj ecture, your Honor, a.nd it is speculative, and

5 fi shing, and it is indefinite; it do es not t end to illus­

6 trate any point one v!ay 0 r the other, out of 1600 names,

7 and it is not cross- examina tion. If they want to kno w

8 anything concerning the jurors in question, let them come

9 right up to the point, get hold of it, and stay with it,

10 and not go fishing around here, meandering around the

11 outskirts 0 f the question.

12 THE COURT: Read the question.

13 (Qu estion read.)

A I <b not recall it.14

15 TEE COURT: I think it is speculative. The objection is
I
I

16 sustained on that ground.

17 lvfR Fa TID : IT Do you know Ur Holmstrup? A I do not.

18 Q Do you know who he was? A I recogni ze th e name as

19 being one that 'V.as on repo rts.

20 Q' Employed by whom? A Mr Franklin.

21 Q I will ask you to look at t his report. A On Lock-

22 _ wood?

23 Q. Yes. P.nd s tate 'whether or not you ever read that'

24 report at arv time? A I canstate that \vithout looking at

25 it.

26 Q yes. A ~hat I have.
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1

2

Q,

Q,

6:3 /!.61

'When and v,here? A I have read it sine e this case begun'l

Did you EVer, before this case began, read that report?

Trat I don t t know. Th ere were 1600 0 dd in h ere, and I

4 couldn t t possibly r emem'ber.

5 Q, You have no recollection of ever havingread that report

6 or having discussed the name of Lock\'Vood vrith Mr Franklin,

7 prior to th e 28t h day of Uovember, 19l1? A I don t t

8 remember; it is po ssible t m. t I did, however.

9 Q Did you, onl November 28th, 1911, ask Ur Franklin who

10 Hr Lockwood was? A Ask him who he was?

11 1{R APP:FtL: November 28th, he says. A No.

12 llJfR F01ID: Read th e last question and answer.

13 (Question and answer read.)

14 A You mean, refer:i:'ing to th e name, ask him who he was?.
15 Q, yes. A No.

16 QAt th e time he was ar rested, or after he was ar-

17 rested, you 1 Earned t mt a man named Lock\voo d and a man

18 named ~hite were implicated in the transaction that occur-

19 red on November 28th? A I did.

20 Q, And you never asked lfr Franklin Vlho Georg eN. Lock-

21 wood was, or vmo C. F.. V~ite vas?
- -- .

22 HR APPEL: We om ect to t tat on th e grC?und it is not

23 c ross- examina tion;· it is incomp etent, irrelevant and imma-

24 te:::-ial, and upon the further ground that the acts and decla-

25 ration; of thedefendant after the alleged commission of th

26 offense are neler evidence, either one wa:y or the other.



1 THE COUR:l': Obj rotion OJ erruled.

2 MR APPEL: We take anecception. Any question about the

3 law) your Hono r!
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motive.

is not evidence or cross-examination and would not be

MR. APPEL. We never asked him what conversations he had

You cannot prejudge a

We asked him conc ern ing vvhe ther

If there is any qU9stion--

man by what he does, as to whether or not he was guilty of

MR. APPEL. It is not cross-exarrination, your Honor, there-

evidence, that te failed to ask him, nnd would not be

matters opened up on direct examination 8n the question of

THE OOURT. Yes, 1 know.

arrest,· or whether he asked him anything concerning that

THE COURT. Onthe same theory--

MR. APPF.L. It is after the arrest of Franklir_.

Now, any staten:ert· made by him, any Btaten~ nt made by

him shelving he had previous knowledge or any omission

part ton;ake any staten;erlt can never be given in evidence.

evidence ttat he did ask him.

any crime yesterday by tis ac:ts after the s.lleged cOll;mif,fdon

TEE COURT. No, 1 think net. 1 think it is· one of those

he had any transacticns with him onNovember 28th and

he denied seriatim, word by word, the testirrony given here

by ;itr. Fr anklin concerning the transaction. Now, th::'-.t we

of the offense, wbich they tave fixed ~s the 28th day of

Novenlber, ] 911, about the hour of 9 0 I cloc:k on that day.

failed to ask him concerning Lockw-od after Franklin's

fore, upon that ground.

with \11'. Franklin concerning Lockwood.
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TFE 'V'! l'I'NESS. 1 would rs.ther ans'ser, if you do not rr:ind.

MR. APPEL. 1 understand, but it is a questic.n of right

and jUs t ice.

TEE COURT. Let me give you my point of view of the

fj,a tter and then if you ·wan t to be heard 1 wi}l hear you.

1 am admitting this as part of the cross-examin:ltion upon

the theory it is properly directed to the examination in

chief .as to the state of niind and lack of ILotive.

MIl • ArrEL. State of mird vlhen, ycur Honor?

THE COURT. State of mind at the time, on the 88th d"ly of

November.

MR • APPEl:. That he' fai led to say anything, for ir.s tance, if

he had been asked a question, "Didn't you discuss it imme-

after things and he does not act with reference to it,he

tion without making any declarations or acts hirmelf can

that respect can neyer be given in evidence in chief, and

if it coul d no t be given in ev idanc e inch ief, how rr,uch 1 es

failure to ask'questions himself, can never be given in

never be given in evidence against him, not even if you

diE:..tely af~er the arrest of ;lr. Franklin, d.ian't you discuss

it with him? " And the itiitne2s says, tiNa, 1 did not."

evidencej the mere acquiescence of a defendant to a situa-

They C2.n c3.11 his attention to any declaration made by this

wi tnes8, but hliii failure to have any conversaticr., his

does not say anytting with reference to it, his conduct in

talk to a defendant, if you say to the deferd ant things
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1 on cross-examinat ion? The sUbje ct was not touched upiDn.

2 THE COURT' 1 realizethe force of your argument, :,':1". Appel,

3 but this question of the state of mind showing l~ck of

4 motive--

5 MR. APPEL. State of mind after the arrest of :!lr. Frmk1in?

6 TFE COURT. State of mind with reference to all the acts an

7 declE~rationa in and about th2.t time.

8 MR. APPEL. The situation?

9 'J'HE COURT. The situation, the facts.

10 Arm.. APPEL. The fact that a man does not say anything, does

11 that show his state of mild?

12 MR. FRlmERlCKS. Wher e he should say S of!,ething •

13 MR. AI'"PEL' Wrat right have they to say that he shaull

MR • APPEL· That you cannot COlIle down here and get up .

say something? That is the very point, your Honor, that

plicHy in it, that that declaration made by the witness

And he makes a denial of his COffi-

ther e is not en y power on earth th;;, t has ever mad.e L';ev idence.

THE COURT. l,at me have this question.

going to do about it?"

before the jury little suspicious circu0stances-­

THE COURT. tet me ha'\"e the QuestiorJ'

(Que:3t ion read. )

state bas said often whereyou havesEtid to a witness,

"Nov;, here, :,:r. Franklin has been arrested, what are you

1 venture to say, your Honor , that the Supren,e Court of this

could not be admitted in evidence.
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1 M'i. POGErS· That is indef inite as to tinle.

2 MR • FORD. At any time.

3 THE WITNESS. Well, let me answer it.

4 MR. APPEL. We want a rUling. If you want to try the case-

5 THE COlffiT. Let us get a ruling on it. Objection overruled.

6 MR· APPEl" Exception.

7 A Now, what is the question? 1 wont bother you again,

8 gentlen:en. 1 ought not to do it, I know.

9 (l.ast question read.)

10 A :J:ha t ques t ion does not follow from the one befor e.

11 MR. IiDFlD' 1 did not n:ake any claim it did.

12 A Yes, you say in the question before, "You never asked

13 II im It •

14 Q 1 have asked you that question and the court has ruled.

15 it is admissible. A 1 talked with him at least as to

16 who he was and 1 thir-k L talked with him on the afternoon

17 of the 28th. When you asked the question before, when I

18 tilked to him on the 28th, 1 assUlLed you meant in the morn­

19 ing, because Franklin s2.id he talked with him--

20 Q. Where did yeu talk with Franklin on the afternoon of the

21 28th about ;;:r. Lockwood'? A Something was said about him

22 at that time, \-ve tad our nB eting.

26 1:R. APT1EL. Pe h2..8 answered that already this rwrning.

A You me:n in reference to LockwOod--

23

24

25

Q Where'? A At the place '.'Ie h~d it, 1 think it was .,~r.

Frankl in 1 s off ice.

Q What was said'?



1 MR • APPEL. He sa id--

2 THE COillT 1 think that has been answered.

3 MR • FORD· Ro, l,ockwood '6 name was not nJentioned.

4 !vip. APPEL. Yes, he said he was bringing that man over there

5 todeliver him to some officer.,
6 A 1 certainly said that, ;,lr. Ford.
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1m APPFL: He has been examined fully on that point.

HR FORlJ: Le t me a.sk the vIi tness one question-

Q Did you, in telling it had occurred at Mr Franklin's

office this morning, or wherever the meeting ~s, in relat­

ing the conversation, did you say anything that was said by

l/ir Franklin about Lockwood? A I think I said that he said

he vas taking him over to th e comer to deliver him up,

and

~ And A And at tha.t time, I kn ell 'Aho he was.

Q At that time, you knell who he was? A yes.

Q. From '\hom di d you get th e information? A Knew it

from the newspapers, and from general gossip and from

everybody you would meat during the day.

Q. Did you ask Mr Franklin at that conversation vho

Lockwoodvas? A I do not recall, but I undoUbtedly said

something to him about \'tho he was, and Franklin replied

what he vas e.nd how long he had knO\m. him.

Q. Did Franklin at tffit time tell you he had been to see

Lock\vood? A No -- you mean been to see him previously

to that?

Q yes. A No.

Q Did he ever at any time or plac e t ell you he had been

to see Lockwood?

MR APPEL: Now, if the question rela.tes to]Ir Franklin

telling l[r :r::arrow after his arrest, after the

mission of the affense,y,-e obj rot to tffit as absolutely
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irmnaterial, and it would not be evidence, even on direct

examina tion; declarations made to a defendant by a thi rd

:r=a rty as to v.hat he did before would be a. recital simply

of past events by alleged coconspirators, and they are

never given in e videnc e, mere recitals even from one co­

conspirator to another, are not widence of what he had

previously done; the declarations of a co-conspirator

when in pursuit of the obj act of the co-conspiracy, may

be given in evidence against his con-conspirators, but mere

~ecitals and historical facts of things that had trans­

pired, would not be given in evid6nc e, cannot be given

in evidence, and t.hat is a posttive and absolute rule of

law; and if it is a question relative to \'\hether or not

Franklin mid anything to him as to who Lock\vood VIas be-

fo re th e c anmission 0 f the offense, the obj EC tion, of

course, ~uld not be tenable, but the qustion being one

that does not cr,ive the time or place, and it assumes to

cover all time -- and I obj ect on th e g'arnun d it calls

fordeclarations made by Mr Franklin as to past offenses,

eith;er to the vdtness or to anyone else concerning his

alleged relations to Mr Lockwood, and would not be evi­

denc e.

lvrR :ERF.xJERICKS: It is not put in under the rul e 0 f the tes­

timony of a.n accomplice, but the d eclars.tions of a defend­

ant in regard to a crime he is c mrged with, vhich

missible at all times.
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1 lnt APPEL: Not \mat Franklin said to him.

2 IrR FREDERICKS: Wh eth er they are aft er th e c rime or be­

3 fore th e crime, the declarations of a defendant in regard

4 to the c rime are admissible always, and conversations he

5 has had in regard to a crime are always admissible.

6 MR FORD: The witness has testified to his relations vdth

7 Franklin up to the 14th of .TanuaIjr, long after the c om-

8 mission of the offense.

9 UR APPEL: That has nothing to do with that.

10 THE COURT: That question changes your argument, then,

11 Captain Fredericks, wh ether admissions of a defendant are

12 admissible -- if you a re asking this on tha t theoIjr, the

13 question does not ask for d ecla.rations ~"f defendant, but

14 of JVrr Franklin.

15 MRFREDERICKS: All conversations vdth the defendant, elim­

16 inating the idea of conspiracy, the theory upon vhich you

17 can give the conversations between a defendant and someone

18 else,.and in so doing give what ttat someone else scdd.

19 THE COURT: But t his question does not ask for a conver-

20 "sation.

21 HR FREDERICKS: I think it does.

22 TF..E COURI': It asks for what 1,fr Franklin says.

23 MR FREDERICKS: yes, and ttat is pennissible as S!lo\rdng

24 the reply vhich the defendant made thereto, if he made any.

25 If it is made after the camnission of the offense.

26 THE COURI': If you want the conversation, I think you
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the stand.

other conversation he ever had with t hat man upon that sub-

not only to the whJk of t lat conversation but to 6lery

'Ihat is the law, and I am ask-

Iassume it is intended to get conversa-

If the court please, this witness has testified

Now, when he has told one conversation, we are entitle

that was gone into on direct examination, namely, his

relations with and conversations vnth Franklin, conversa­

tions and relations on the part of this \"{i tness vvho vas on

on di rec t &amina tion as to his relations with Franklin J

ing purely, as a matter of cross-examination, regardless

of what theory it was put in --~.: upon direct ex:amination.

I am asldng it simply because it was a sUbj ect matter

wood.

to ask for it.

tions.

ject, George N. Lockwood.

:MR APPEL: No, your Honor.

TEE COURT: If yot1"ant the conversation you better ask

for it, and you wiiI get a ruling on it, but the question

in this form, the objection to it is sustained.

MR FORD: Did you ever, 2. t any time of' plac e, between the

day of Novem'bef, 1911, and the 14th my of .ranuary, 1912,

MREREDERICKS :

--
covering e. period long after the c amni ssion of a crime,

and he has testified t hat Franklin ~id certain thing s

about the commission of that offense, for instance, that

Franklin said that he was trying to trap George N. Lock-

1m FORD:
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1 or on th e 14tp. day of .Janua ry, 1912, have any conversationl
..

2 with Bert H•. :Ei:'anklin other than t he conversation you have

3 related that you had in Franklin's office on the 28th day

4 of November, 19l1?

5 l.[R APPEL: Wait a moment.

6 Q About and concerning George N. Lockvv"ood?

7 UR APPEL: We obj act tot rat on the ground it is not

8 cross-examination, that it is incomp.etent, irrelevant

9 and immaterial, that it is seeking to introduce converss.-

10 tions between l[r Franklin and t hedefendant oth er than those

11 upon which he vras examined in chief in his ovm defense;

12 your Honor will remember that we went over the test !mony

13 of Mr :Darrow prior to th e 28th day of November --

14 THE COURI': I remember the conversation he had gone into

15 aft er his arrest, whic h was in regard ,to th e bond rna t­

16 ter, and th e fin e.
- . ,

17 MR APFEL: yes, we simply answ'ered the testimony of 1fr

18 Franklin in that Tespec t. Mr ROg ers Yv'8nt seriatim over

19 one conversation after another.

20 THE' COURT: That brings us down to the question o:f wheth er

21 or not lfr Ford is right about his c antention t hat he is

22 entitled to any conversations upon that sUbject matter.

23 JI[RFORD: If the conrt plese, the witness has testified

24 that he ne.rer gave this money to Franklin, that he ne.rer

25 gave him arw mon ej" to bribe Lockwood; he has testified now

26 he n e.rer read any repo rts upon Lock':roo d and to some slight
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1 extent has testified to what conversations he did have

2 about Lockwood; those conversations did not go into the

3 sUbject matter fully, the SUbject matter, his conversations.
4 vri th Franklin about Lockwood. Now, I want to g 0 fully

5 into that sUbj ~t matter, and to know wheth er the conver-

6 sations here related as occurring. t.;etween himself and Frank­

7 lin were all that ever occurred upon that subj ect matter,

8 Geo rg e Iii". Loc bvood.

Mr FOrd, you are mistal<en in one statement
•

9 THE WI Tl~ES S :

10 there.

11 THE COURT: The only conversation

12 UR FORD: 'What is tIE. t?

13 THE 1'l[TlffiSS: Pardon me J you a re mistaken in one stat ement.

14 1\ER FORD: Correct me, if I am.

15 THE VlITlifESS: I did not gay I did not arer read any report

16 on Lockwood at t:ra t time; I said I did not recall it, but

17 I very likely had.

18 THE COURI.': You ase asking now for conversations after

19 Franklin's arrest?

lfR IDRn: Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT: Th e only conversations if my memory serves me

under some other circumstances.

right J th e only conversations upon ,,'hic h this witness 'ViaS

interrogated in his ex:amination in chi ef occurring after

Franklin's arrest, .....ere in regard to the bond matter, and

the money to pay the fine and to rehabilitate himself,

20

21

22

23

24

25

26



1

2

MR FREDERICE:B: Those are Franklin's conversations.

T'"rJ.E COU Rr: COnversa.tions between this defendant and Frank-

1

/.

3 lin.

4 MR FORD: This 'witness has, .on his direct ex:amination, made

5 an omnibus denial of wery conr ersation tha t Franklin ever

6 testified to; that F~rrington ever testified to, and sev-

7 eral other persons, made a general omnibus denial of all

8 tho se things. It has been held in this cou It --

9 THE eOUID: Perhaps you a re rig ht --

10 MR FORD: -- If a defendant takes the stand and testifies

11 about thi s subj ec t, simply saying, If I am not guilty 0 f

12 such a charge", and s bould stop his direct examination

13 right there, tlat \'\Quld open up the vrhole field on c ross-

14 examination. This witness h ere has denied paying money to

15

16

17

18

I
IFranklin for Lockwood, has denied having any sue h rela- I
I

tions with Franklin at all; has denied wer learning anythirte
I

from Franklin about Lockwood, except this one thing, t tat i
I

Franklin claimed he was trying to catch Lockwood because

19 LocIDvood had solicited a bribe from him, Franklin. That

20 opens up t he whole field for every conversation that this

21 vr.i. tness (Ner had with Franklin about Lockwood for th e

22 purpose of, of course, on our side, shovnng, if we can,

23 and if such be the fact, as we claim it is the fact, that

24 this witness has not correctly related the circumstances

25 as they occurred; that, as a matter of fact, he did give

26 Franklin the money and t hat the reason he never asked
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1fr Franklin \mO Lockwood was, was because he knew from pre­

vious declarations 0 f Franklin, and t bat the reason he

never asked Franklin vhere he got th e money was because

he knew he himself had given th e money to Franklin and had

given it to him for that purpose.

THE COUll: Well, do not a rgue the facts. The question

is a proposi tion of law' under 'whic h this ten der is made.

I \nll hear you, Mr Appel, on it.
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him to show whether or not in thos e conver-sat ions he asked

to solicit a bribe, and he discussed the fact with his wife

present,:md ,"'either his sor.:. or his daughter was present at

Let mehave that qUestioJ

lJo,v, to ask this witnet:s after-

There was, as the witness state

Well, suppose, your Honor, the best way to doM~. APrSL.

is to read an author i ty •

MFl. ROGERS. ~ardon me, I.:r. Appel.

Frankl in who Lockwcod was. Now, your Honor, the'w i tness

has already testifed that on the 28th, that i.Ir. Franklin

stated to him that this man Lockwood there stated to him

Frankl in said, in the pr ea ence of ::'r. D3.iTis, and in the

presence of ;.:1'. Darrow, that Lockwcod had come over to his

(Question read by the reporter.)

THE COURT' No, that question, the objection was sustained.

It was the lorg question following that.

(Last question read by the reporter. )

MR • APPEL. Now, th eon} y ob j ect in ask irg him that is to

show him whether or not if he said he bad conversation with

office 2,nd that he had come down there prior to that time

this man Lockwood, or ask him anything about it, would be

the time that occurred.

perfectly superfluous.

'!:ards, whether after that conversation, he says, Who is

~here onthat day or a day or two after, as it appears in

6lidence here, that Frankliri not only. had said he was in
the

the act then of turning Lockwood over to~officer down there

at the corner, but they had discussed the fact trot ;/[r.

19s 1
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1 that he had inforl1lat ion who Lockwcod was, that it was a

2 matter of general discussion down here inthe court room

3 in,n,ediatelY' after arrest of Franklin; that it was a

4 matter that bad been discussed here pub] icly; there

5 were rumors there tha + he claimed to be a juror. The

6 evidence is here that immediately after the arrest, at the
'.

7 tin!e of the arrest tbat he was present;. J,. that :Lr. prowne

8 snid to him, tlThis llian is under arrest; 1 P..1n going to

9 arrest him." The evidence is already here that :1:r. Darrow
T'

10 heard in the court room within hal f an hour (br so aft er

11 the arr est th at Mr. Browne had said to him, "1 have arr est ed

12 this man for jury bribing." That he came here in the court

13 room and it was a matter of general discussion, and to say
if

14 that under those circurr,stances that/Mr. Darrow after that

15 didn't say to Franklin, IIWho is this man Locbvood, "':.

16 and to argue from that, having all that inforration in his

17 mind, becaus e he didn't say that, and tha t is' the ii ea

18 of gettir-g this question now, i8 to circumvent the ruling

19 of the court a little while ago, your Honor sustained the

20 objection, as 1 understood it, or having it under considera

21 tion, if you please, why didn,t you ask him? That is the

22 argument, and cOLnsel has made here this reason why they

23 want to ask him because he didn 1 t say to him after know ing

24 who Lockwcod was and after having seen Frankl in state,

25 "1 was gOing to turn Lockwood up" II and then Bupplement

26, that explanation" that Fr~nklin had come down to his off'
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to solicit a bribe, would it be any evidence against the

def'enda'n't because he didn 't question a man and ask him

who was Lockwood? Your Honor can see there is absolutely

nothing in it,but 1 do say, as a n~atter of right, they have

no right to croes-examine this witnessconcerning any con-

~rsations to which he testified. ~,fr. Frankl in went on and

stated a number of conversations which he said he had between

the 28 th day of November and the 14th day of January, 1912.

He stated seriatim what conversaticns he had. He said trat

iter the 14th day of January--after that he diclntt

talk to {,lr. Darrow. Mr. narrow has said that he don,t remembe

having met him or talked to him after that, and we responded

to thoe e conversatiorn; lye asked him what did :.:r. Fran klin

say in this respect, and what did you say. Did you say so

and so? And wher ever he saw that ;,lr. Frar! kl in had made a

misstatement he has contradicted him. Wherever he saw

;,1r. Franklin has m'ide a true statement he has corroborated

him • Now , can they go into other conversat ions? 1 say i"',

is not cross -exaruin,",t ion. Now, upon th e other point, suppos

:.;1". Franklin had said to this mEl,n, 111 went down there and to

br ibe Juror Lockwood." This man had already took it.

Franklin has said here upon the stand that he was maintain­

ing his innocence all the way through up to the time that

he plead gUilty. That is "the evidence of Xr. Franklin here.

Now, to s'ythat :.:r.F:vanklin would say ;i~r. Darrow at any
of November. 1911 had

time between the 14th day of .'J"anuary and the 28th'any
A.
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crime that any statement made to him as a statement by

conspirator with bim in tbe cOllirnission of the offense, is

corm, i tted, tta t wher e the defendant is dur lEg all that

other persons or by anyone who claims to have been a 00-

in :6rder to draw an

Now, that is aff ire.at ive

discuss ion concerning his guil t,

time and to tbe present time denying his cOllip1ioity in the

in evidence. Now, Chief Justice Beatty in the case ~

T'eople aga.inst D'esharei, (Quoting from authority).

admission or acquescence on the part of 1:'1" rarrow here

that he himself was gUilty of any conlplicity in this crirne,

Now, there are a nureber of other cases on that

point that after the com.rl,ission of the offense, your Honor,

where ever,. anyone says to the defendant bere anything,
\

or conducted h ims e1f wi th refer enc e to the cr ime that be has

1 say is not cross-examination, and Hio not admissible

not evidence, it is hearsay.

1

2

3

'-. 4

5
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17 evidence. ~hey undertake to introduce here. It is not

18

19

cross-examination of any conversatL~,ns to wbich Mr. narroV!
wn.nt

has admitted. It is true that they don't,,;!,r. Darrow to say

20 . VIhatwas s ai d, or what' he 8 aid in response to anytb ing

21 that was said, but they want to .show acts and cor:duot on the

22 par t of :,:r. rarrow her e, ,independent of his eviclence tha the

23 gave here in direct examination, which is a part and rarcel f

24 their Cdse in cbief. 1bey had a right to say to ";lir.

Yes. Did :.;,.' DarTO'll ::lsk you who this nian

25 Fr ankl in, Did you talk to .:r. par row concerning Yl'tat you and

26 Tockwood did?



~ 1 Lockwood was? No. That wO"L'ld have been all right. The

2 inferEnce. would have been irresponsible, at least the argu-

3 IT! ent would rave been made tha tit was not necessary for

4 ;,Ir. Darrow to ask him who Lockwood was, because there was a.
5 perfect understandircg who he was and what the transaction

6 w,!s, but to extr3.ct that portion from the defendant 1 say

7 is making hirr a witneEos against himself intre most innocent

8 way, and yet, your Honor, 1 8?-y it is ir..conJpetent, irrele-

9 vant and immaterial and not cross-examination.

10 MR. FORD. On page 6053 of the transcript the witness

11 prc:.ctically denies everything. He tas deu.ied on page 6054:

12 "Q Are there any conversaticns here that con,e to your

13 mind now thci.t you recall without n.y going over them and

14 taking the time to repeat every word or line and have you

15 denied categor ical] y--1 Vi ish you would mal~e a general

16 statement about the~e matters, if you can, if not, 1 will

17 go over it? A 1 think it has been all covered." And ther

18 was the answer of the witness. People against Deshara

19 has nothing to do with the cross-examination, and the point

20 we ITlake, your Por-or, is that Frar.klin h:::,s related various

21 conversatiorcs had with this witness after his arrest, up

22 to and includir.g the 14th day of Januaryl 1912. This

23 witnesstas, generally speakir.g, without taking the trouble

24 to deny eac~ specific convers2ticn, denied that any of

25 those thinGS occurred. Now, 1 ~m going in, on cross-

.,
!.....r.

Franklinafter his arrest, up to and including the 14th day

ex=:.rr,ination, to the various conversaticns he had \'lith26
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January, which is strictly cross-examination. It matters

not what the effect of it is. 1 don't have to stand he re

and argue the admissibility or non-admissibility of it •

The question here merely is, is it cross-examination. Does

it cover the SUbject ~atter that was testified to on direct

e x::lIliina tion by this VI! itness? Th is vro] e point, your Honor,

1 am not offering it specifically for any particular purpos ,

because 1 don t t have to.

MR. ROGERS. If 1 understand it, your Honor please, this

is a 'lues t ion directed to :ftr. ~arr ow as king him if he had

any conversa.tion of any kind with ;'.1r. Fr3.nk1in after arrest,

about i,Ir. Lockwood, other than trose be has related, am 1

about correct in the general purport of it?

'I'VE COURT. That is SUbstantially the question as the court

un ders tands it.

-ME ~ FORD. Substantially, yes.
to

ivlR.ROGERS. j~ir. Appel and 1 agree that the Objec!ion...,that,

in that form, should be withdrawn. The witnes8 C,2Jl answer

whether he ever did have any conversation after arrest with

20 1.lr. Fr3.TlkJ in about :.:r. Lockwood at all. Th e 'iue 8 t i on is

21 not clear--this question, of course, don, t follow the

22 line of interrogation whic!: W2..S suggested by me, having

23 given this docuwent--we have strayed a long way from that

24 document.

25 THE COURT

26

Then the objection is Withdrawn?

The o'biectjon is VI ithdrawn provided it...
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u mers tood that it doe an' t follow that line of croas-

Franklin about Lockwood other than those related.

stOOl-:, relates to the question and the matter after ;..ir.

examinat ion,. and relates--6o that it is thoroughly under-

L{r. Darrow had any conversation withFranklin's arrest.
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1 THE COURI': That is your question,&s it, 1/fr Ford?

2 1viR FORD: The l1uestion is before the court, and -­

3 if you will just read that question to the court.

4 1"TR HOGERS: It is not here.

5 MR FORD: Well, to get at it thi sway, I will put it bri ef­

6 ly along this lin e: Did you ever have any conv ersation

7 with },/lr Franklin concerning lfr Lock\voo d ot her than those

8 you have related?

9 UR APFEL: That is not t he question. Your Honor sustain...

10 ed an objection to trot. Your Honor remembers, and then he

11 limit ed --

12 UR FOP.}): Between thedltes november 28th, 1911, and Jan­

13 uary 14th, 1912. A Th ere were other things he said to

14 me.

15 Q What "vere the other things he said to you about Lock-

16 wood? A I don't know whether I could tell them all. I

17 could tell sam.e 0 f them.

18 Q, About LockwCXll1? A yes.

19 Q, All right. Tell us everything he told you about Lock-

20 wood. A I don't know as I can te 11 you everything at

21 thi s time.

22 Q Everything that you recall; that is all we ask for,

23 of course. A He .told me Lockwood had been to his office

24 once or twice to solicit a bribe. He told me that he had

25 knovm him in the sheriff's office, and known him

26 they were friends, and that he ...vas also a friend of th e
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1 Distric t Attorney -- I am referring to Lock.J'IOod now.

2 He mid Lockwoodwas, and that he had been connected with

3 the j ail here for -- outside of it, for a number. of. years.

4 I don't remembE!r how long: Captain of the chain-gang.

5 I donlt remember what else he said. He was a friend of

6 Captain "ni te' s.

7 When di d he tell you of this? A Different times' soon

8 after.

9 Q, How many times di d you see him between th e 28th day

10 of November, 1911, and the 14th day of Janua~, 19l2?

11 A

12 Q

I didn't see him ve~ often.

Approxin~tely, how often? A Oh, perhaps five or six

13 times:

14 Q Onc e a week? A I mw him more at fi rst than I d:tl

15 later.

16 Q For the first two \'J6eks you $W him nearly every day,

17 did you not? A I donlt think so. I saw him a number of

18 times.

19 Q Take the period from his arrest up until the time (f

20 his second preliminary examination upon th e :Bain Charge,

21 ho\v frequently did you see him? A Well th e first week,
22 after his arrest, I didn't have much chance to see him,

23 if I had tried, because I vias very busy. I probably saw

24 him -- oh, I don't know, six or eight times.

Did hearer tell you tlRt he had been out to Locko/'lOod I

A I don't think he ever told me any such thing26 house?

25



Neither at the time it occurred or since that ti~?

1

2

any time.

G,,"! 0 I

I

3 A

4 Q

He did not.

Did you ever ask him if he had been out to Locb'rood' s

5 house? A I asked him frequently a bout it after the first

6 fev! days.

7 l.~R APIEL: You mean after his arrest? A Yes, afevl days

8 after. his arrest.

9 liR FORD: Did you ever ask him if he had been out to

10 Lockwood's house, is the question.

11 MR APPEL: . Qbj oot to that. The, witness has been asked

12 that question and has answered it.

131m FORD: Ee has not answered it. He has been asked that

14 question, but he has not answered it.

15 THE eQUID': Let, shave anoth er anSVler.

16 A I don,t recall ,mether I ever asked him that question

17 or not. I don't recall wer asking it of him.

18 r.,~R FORD: Isn't it a fact you n6l1er asked him? A I don't

19 knoY! 'J'rh ether I di d or no t.

20 Q. Did you receive a copy of the transcript of the pre-

21 liminary w..amination in JUdge Young's office? A I did not

22 Q You know the one I refer to? A yes, because I h~e

23 Seen it since.

24 Q You have seen both since, on the Lockwood and the

25 Bain rna tter? A I have.

26 Q That was s inc e t his trial l:.egan? A yes.



with Loc k\Vo ttil.

claimed Franklin had come out to his house on the 4th of

6371
I

. I
During

They are di fierent.A

Since the trial r..egan? A I won"t say that.

Well, ,~thin the last couple of months? A

Q

Q

Q. Did he tell you that he had been out to the house?

A I don't recall tre. t he wer did. He tol d me Lock\Vood

had been to his office.

Q Well, had you? A yes.

Q Well, ,men did you first learn that? A Right away.

You said first heard and then you said 1 Earned; vhic h do

you mean? 4 Ei ther one.

I ever asked him at all, but he told me.

Q vthat did he tell you? A He told me about his relati on

either the trial or the preparation, this one, mine.

Q Since your indictment? A yes.

Q You never heard before your indictment t mt Lockwood

IJovember, 1911, and that he visited there on Sunday night,

nOVember 26th? A I didn't say that.

Q, Well, di d you ever hear? A ·yes.

Q 'When? A Right a.way.

Q Right away after 'what? A After his arrest.

Q From whom did you h Ear that? A Newspapers.

Q Did you wer ask Franklin at that time if that vas true?

A I think I did; I am not certain.

Q '\W1o \'laS present Ehvm you asked him that? A I don't

know vrh ether I ever asked him wh En arvbody Vlas pr esent, or
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1 Q. How do you recall that you asked him?

2 MR ROGERS: He has answered that bro or th ree times tha t

3 he doesn't remember. That is not fair.

4 1fR IDRD: Yon89..w in the paper that, it vas alleged that Frank­

5 lin had been out to Locb/ood's house? A Yes.

6 MR APPBL: He has a lready answered that.

7 MR FORD: He has ansvyered now for the first time.

8 Then, you asked Franklin if t hat ViaS t rne.

9 MR APPEL: lYai t a moment.

10 MR FORD: Well, did you? A I have answered t!at a good

11· many times.

12 Q. Now, I haven't got an answer to it yes or no.

13 A Well, very well. I will give you another one. I don't

14 recall '.vhether I asked speclfically if he had been to Lock­

15 wood's house or not.

16 Q. Do you recall whet her you had any infonnation upon

17 that snbj ect other than ne\"{spaper reports? A I talked

18 with Jrr Davis about it, and I talked with various peopl e

19 about it. Various people about it.

20 Q. This charge you thought at t 1Rt time woul d have a

21 serious effect upon th e negotiations whic h you f!!ZY were

22 pending at that time?

23

24

25

26
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Already asked

Q Refreshing your recol-

Gounsel shouldn't ask ths.t question.in the r scord.

MR. FOFD. Ot, it is a enamel

lectian by these events to which 1 ha,te called. y01.11'

attention, is your ITiemory now refreshed on tne SUbject

\-vtether or not yeu r eoeived any inf or ma t ion s(J"lfJtrltUl'/Jv1'

~ffi. ROGERS. Objected to as argumentative.

and anew'ered and not cross-examination.

MR. APPEL· Fifteen times.

TPE COURT. Objection sustained.

1ffi. FORD. Q Attracting your attention to the fact trat

you did so testify, 1 wi}] ask you if that didn 'tsause you

to ask ~ilr. Frank1in whether it was true that he went OlJt

to 1,0c hrood 's hous e on ~Ioven;'her 4th?

MR • ROGERS. Objected to as not cross-exanination; argu­

mentative and already asked and answered.

THE COlffiT. Objection sustained.

MR. FORD. Q Rec2.lling t'ho.t to your mind thct it was im­

portant to you, and recalling to your mind tt.e fact that

you had seen that in the paper, does that refresh your

recollection new as to whether you really did receive

th:::.t answer from ;,il". Franklin personal:;' on that matter?

MR • POGEFS. -qe ceive an answer--no'N, if yOlI Honor please,

that assumes, "Receive an answer ll , it ia a;:.;suming that

the witness has declined. 4 or 5 times to say that he

asked him.

MR • FOR D • 1 with dr awit •

MR • POGF.R8. That "vo'Lld have been a nice thir:.g to get
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1 personally on the sUbject of his going to Lockwood's

2 house?

3 A 1 don,t know whether he told me specifically whether

4 be went to Lockwood's house or not, but he told me about

5 his relatic:ns with Lockwood and where Lockwood had seen

6 hin~ and what he was doing on the street.

7 Q That was in regard to Third and Los Angeles street, and

8 Vi i th regar d to Lockwood going to Franklin's off ice and

9 soliciting a bribe? A Going to his office to solicit a

10 bribe, 1 think, on several occas ions.

11 MR. FORD. Q IfJr." Darrow, up untiJ the 14th day of January,

12 1912, the position assumed hy Franklin, as f:n- as you were

13 informed, and as far as you knevl, wat that he, Franklin,

14 was ir:nocent, and that Lockwood had attempted to solicit

15 I a bribe from him, Franklin, isn't that correct?

Q yes. A No.

A Up until the 14th of January?

Q WelJ, th8. twas yeur" understanding on the 28th and 29th

of November) 19117 A My understanding was that he said so,

16

17

18

19

20

21

yes.

Q yes, that he said so. Now, did you ever know him to

22

23

24

25

26

change that story up until the 14th day of January?

MR. ArT'EL. That i 9 2.irr,flaterial. 1 don,t care whether b.e

ctanged it or not. Tb.er e has been so manychanges, now we

are getting to tre changes--it is imn;aterial whether he ­

i'new he had cranged it or not. The actiop of \!r. Fl~ankJ in
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after the comffiission of the alleged offense to change or

fix it up is imnaterial. Mr. Franklin had three or four

differe~t theories up until the time someone got hold of

him and put it on Darrow. That is about the substance of

the whole testimony here, because ~,:r. Franklin, although he

said he had heen seen by two or three parties on ,January

l"'4th, and then he comn~enced to put it on Darrow, yet at the

s arne t in,e he swore r igtt her e in open cour t he never

a:::cused Darrow. He says never in his life he accused him.

MR. FORD. 1 Withdraw that question to save argunent.

TEE COURT. Ques t ion Vi i thdrawn •

MR • FDRD•. Q Novl, let me get you right. You )z-neVl on

NOVelJ'8er 28th and 29th, 1911, that Franklin said th::"t

Lockwood had tried to solicit a bribe from hirr,'? A November

28th and 2S,th? Yes.

Q No';" when W'31'e you iLformed froIT. any source that

Franklin did not claim to have been apuroached by Lockwood

atye~pting to solicit a bribe, if ever'?

MR. APPEL· Objected to as immaterial. What difference

does it m:1.ke if anyone came dovln and told him that'?

Is that evidence? 1 wouldn't hang a yellow dog on such

evidence as thCit, b'.3cause somebody carr,e to 1,:r. Darrow and.

told him Franklin, got money from :i~r. Ford or that he 'vent

and picked Lock-Neod out of the ocean down here and tried

to choke him With a bribe of ~4,OOO, or anyone else, all

those statemer..ts n-ade to him would not make him und-erstan
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1 his situation; wouldn't make him change his own opinion

2 of his OlJffi innocence, his own conscience of his own inno:-

3 Cence. They em ask tim what he did do, that Vlould shew

4 any campI ic i ty in the cr in,e, but as to wha t somebody told

5 him, your Honor, 1 just read a decision that what somebody

6 tOld him is not evidence, it is not cross-examination. The

7 defendant, according to '~:r. Ford, ought to go to '.vork and hale

8 his tongue cut out and his ears choked up so 3.S not to hear

9 anything or say anything after he is suspicioned of having

10 COffllJdtted a crime, for fear if he says something 'be is

11 guilty, and if he don't say aYltybing, having the ability

12 to say it, he is guilty, so by cutting his tongue out the

13 d ef endant could come on the s t::md and say, "Why, 1 didn't

14 hear it bec~use I cr:Jl't hear and 1 can't talk because 1

15 have no tongue." That is about the only protect ion a man

16 has so long as tl1e District Attorney's office is run by i,fr.

17 Ford.

18 THE COURT. 1 think the door to this oross-examir:ation is

19 opened by interrogat ing the witness in chief as to any and

20 all of the conversations that :.:r. Franklin and he had. It is

21 found at page 6050 and to 160. Objection overruled.

26 ~iR. FORD· 1 will ctange it to "by Franklin," instead of

TEE COURT· Let's have it •
T

(tast question read by the reporter. )

T'ardo n H,e, yuur ~Tonor has. not afprehended

the question.

IvT. POGERS.22

23

24

25
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1 "any source."

2 ME. APT'EL. Tl-.e witness h=ts not s=tid Franklin told bim

3 anything whatever.

4 THE COURT. Objection sustained.
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1 :M:R FORD: Were you aler infonned by Franklin prior to

under all conditions and circumstances.

wood's house before Lock\vooo. came to Franklin's office?

IJR FORD: Withdraw the question.

A I never was.

Were you wer informed by F.ranklin prior to th e 14th

You said Mr ~ranklin told you that Lockvrood had visit-

to solicit a bribe from him?

Q

Q,

en him, Franklin, at his, Franklin's office. Now, did

Franklin ever tell you that he, Franklin, had visited Lock-

the 14th day of january, that Locbrood did not attempt
,

testimony t mt somebody may have adventured in the court

room. They may ask him, without obj ootion, if they see fit

what Mr Franklin saiH to him; wmt he said to Mr Franklin

lfLR APIEL: lIoV'!, he has answered that several times.

not disposed to admit to be true, we will say, and say,

didn't you 1 earn thus and so; no foundation laid for it at

all. Yon cannot ask a witness vhat he 1 earned about som e

siTR P,OGERS: Now, this style of cross-examination is obj 004;-

ed to, your Honor please, as not c ross- eiCa11lina tion. VIe

do not obj act, as your Honor has suggested, to their asking

what Mr Franklin said to him; what he said to Mr Franklin,

but now they refer to a part 0 f the testimony V',hich we are
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1 when is this going to end? If it isn't going to end

2 tonight, we would like to take an adj ournment until n ex:t, .

3 year. He is asking it time and time over again.

4 THE COURT:

5 it.

It may be you are right. I am doubtful of

6 MR APPEL: Within the last ten minutes, wen, if we have

7 any memory at all, it has been asked, and finally that

8 brought up th e discussion, and we read this B.eshara case.

9 I remember that Deshara case,: ,yourHonor, and thEn we

10 withdrew the objection and the witness was allowed to answer.

THE COURr: Obj action overrul ad.11

12

13

14

15

16

(Last

A lio.
~

JIR FORD:

]JLR FORD:

A Read it, please.

question Jread by th e rfJOrter.)

:z eft, 6 (5 '7 t /. ~ :b-.r
Never at any time?

Now, then, there you are, your Honor.

Now, di d you I earn -- withdraw the quest ion.

17 Did ur Franklin tell you on November 28th, 1911, '<here he

18 got the $4000 that ,-.as taken f rom the person of 'Vlhi te and

19 Lockwooo? A He did not.

20 Did he ever tell you at any time that he had the

21 $4000? A He di d not.

22 Q Did]fir ravis ever tell you a t any time tha t Franklin

23 had th e $4000.

24 :MR APPEL: Wait a minut e. 'l,l.e obj oot to t lRt upon the

25 ground it is incompetent, irrelevant and immaterial, and

26 not cross-examination. He can ask him, your Honor, what



He told me ttat Franklin had once said tmt heAthat?

1vrr Davis said, because this vii tness has al ready testified

what Mr Davis said in answer to llr Franklin's statement,

and several conversations of that kind. He can ask him

what he said, but to put to him exactly, di d he tell you

in. so many words, such and snch a thing, I say it is not

cross-examination, and it is immaterial. Suppose Davis

told him that Franklin says he got the money from a man who

pretended to be from San Francisco or Chicago, a~d describ­

ed that man. Vhat difference does it make?

THE COURi': Obj ec tion overruled.

],{ RAPPEL: We ecc ept •

A Vllat is this?

(Last question read by the reporter.)

A I don't recall that he~er said exactly tlat.

J.!R FORD: Did he ever t ell you anyt bing in sUbstanc e like

got tthe mon eJ from som ebody on t of town.

Q Now, when did lvrr Davis tell you t tat?

.UR ROGERS: Just a moment. Let him finish.

UP.. POlID: Pardon me.

A I don,' t know wh eth er he said San Francisco 0 r Chic ag; 0

or v.here, but he said he got it fram somEi)ody out of town,

so Mr Davis to~d me.

Q \'ihen did J,fr :r::avis tell you that? A I think it vas

the early part of January.

Q 19l2? A That is what I think. I wouldn't be certa
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1

2

as to t he -date.

Q. Th e 14th day of .January? A Yes.

63~

I

3 Q. Was that th e first time you ever lam ed t lat, or heard

4 that, rather, I will say, !'rom any soume? A The first

5 time I ever heard he got it from somebody out 0 f to\VIl?

G Q. yes. A, I don,t recall whether anybody else said that, .
.'

7 to me or not. I don't know vho elsee\Ter said it up to that
'---------

8

9

time.
""-----_............. -

Q Was t hat the first time you ever heard t rat Franklin.
10 had $4000? A I didn't hear that he had.

11

12

13

HR APPEL: I subm.i t he has asked that question, and l;fr Dar­

row has explained repeatedly, that on the 28th, in the

afternoon, it ,vas a matter of c amnon notoriety and discus-

14 sion. He said that.

18 Q. Well, you 1m ell that Mr Franklin di <it' t have $4000 of

19 his own money on l1ovember28th? A I didn't suspect him

20 of it.

paper talk.

gossip over and over again from t hat time on.

15

16

17

MR FORD: We will eliminate the newspaper; other than n~s­

A I probably heard it as a matter of cammon /1
I
I
J

YOuare <:pite sure he didn't have it, are you? A Well,Q.

I didn't suppose he had it.

Q. Now, di. d it 61 er 0 ceur to you, get ting a t your stat e of

mind, before l[r Davis told you that some out-of-to'wn man

had gilJen Franklin th e money, did the possibility

lin's having $4000 on that day ever occur to you?
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HR APPEL: }Tow,. that is immaterial. That is argumentative. I

~hat difference does it make after the allged commission

of th e offense, they. go and ask him how many different ideas

crept into his mind and how he t h::>ught this and how he

conjured that.

THE COUPJ': I think it i,s going too far.

MR F01ID: WhEn di. d you learn from ur Davis that Frank-

lin had admitted receiving $4000 but said it v~s from some-

body out of town? Why didn't you ask ur Franklin Rbout

it yourself? A I ''IRS afraid 0 f him.

Q. Afraid of him at that time? A Yes sir; longl:efore.

Q Vohen ai d you first become afraid of him? A V ery

soon.

Q. Very soont after when? A After he \vas arrested.
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to this.

along.

bribe but that Franklin had offered the bribe? A No,

A Probably sooner than a

soon.

Q A day, week or a mc)nth 1

I take 3n exception to it in the manner it is asked.

~m. APfEL' Now, your Honor--

MR. ROGERS. 1 am going to take an exception to that

question. 1 v'lill not object 'to .it, you Iliay answer it, but

week, but 1 thought he would be a mighty good n,an to leave

you knew you gave him the money?

A I did not for any reason on that account, not the
T

slightest in the world, but 1 had reason because you TIere

Q TIm'! long after his arrest? A ,1 couldn. t tell. Very

You may answer.

Q Yeu had reason to be afraid of him because of the fact

after me, and would give him his liberty if he viould get me.

r,m. FO'RD. Q It:i t was a. few' days af fer th earl' es t of

Franklin? A Right straight, and 1 knew the other interests

that would be glad to do it, :ind have known it from that tim

f::iCt not con;Tince you that Lockwood was not soliciting a

Q Did you believe the story that he had received r

lot of things were possible, that among others.

Q Well, as soon q.s you heard that he had ~4,OCO, did that

some money from sonie person out of town? A 1 bel:ie ved a

observe y:>u have a double que3t~on there so 1 answer it n
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1 Q, DJ you wish to modify it in any way? A No, it will

2 stand. 'rha t is a good anS'Ner to that ques t ion •

3 Q. When you heard that Frankl in rea] ly had 1~4,p.oO, did you

4 then believe that Lockwood had solicited the bribe?

5 A 1 didn,t kno1.;! "'\That the arrangements was between Franklin

6 and LockNcod and the other people or how such a thing

7 happened to be done in that way, and who was responsible

8 for it, and 1 am not sure yet.

9 Q :.11'. Davis gave you the n::;me of the person frOlY, whom Frar:k-

10 1 in got the money? A He did not.

11 Q Did he say it W2..S John Ruar1' ington? A He did not.

12 w:R APPEL· He just said he didn't say •. '\"Jhat is the use

13 of ar gUing thi 8 n,a tter •

14 MR. FORt. 1 am not boun d by one answer. 1 can as k

15 another oIj the same sUbject.

I~ Vias tho.t in cash?

f ied, 1 believe? A

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

MR • APrEL.

THE COUR T.

11;R. APPEL·

TT-U; COURT.

11R. FORD.

adjourn ing:

He :can't-argue his answers in that way.

Do you object to it?

eertainly •

Objection sustained.

l~just want to ask you cr.e Question before

Q You paid :.:1'. uarrington:f:Z500, you testi-

I did.

A 1t Vi 2,8 in cash.

24 Q When? A Either the first of Lecembe1' or v~ry soon

26 Q And from what place did you get the c3.oh? A lion' t

25 after.



1

2

3

you know?

-
Q I am ask ing you. A I got it fro m ;,ir. ~avis who' got it

on n. check fron! me because we were threatened with

4 attachment proceedings by a faker here in town who did

5 attach some money, and we were t~reatened with other

6 attachment proceedings, and the money was drawn out of the

7 bank and he gave me that for that purpose. That is how

8 1 got it. I told ;,11" Earrington that and 1 supposed you

9 knew it.

10

11

12

Q What date? A 1 couldn't tell you.

Q What 1 know is not in evidence, 'Ir. farrow.A I know,

but you wouldn't have to ask me if you knew it .
13 lviR. FOGERS. tTust a moment. Counsel got from nle a book

14 whicb he got as a personal matter on the strength of his

15 going to introduce it in evidence. 1 inquire if he is.

16

17

18

MR. FORD. I intend to at the proper time.

MR. POGERS.
u

the time now?Isn t proper

MR • FORD. I will introduc e it at my ovvn free convenience.

19 MR. ROGERS. Wi]l you do it tomorrow? Shall 1 bring the

20 book back?

21 UR. FORD. Yes, bring the book back. Thank you for your

22 courtesy.

23 UR. APPEL. J\lay we aek a question to see if 7:e _want to have

24 our other witnesses tere tomorrow?

26 (Jury aclr"oniohed. 'Recess until August 2, 1912, at 10 A .ff

25 (Discuss ion. )




